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CLIFFORD CHANCELLP
Financial Statements fur the year ended 30 Apnit 2023

REPORT TO THE MEMBERS

The Exccuteve Leadership Group ('ELG ') presents the audited Financial Statcments to the members of Cliftord Chance LLP, a
linuted liability partnership registered in England and Wales with registered nymber OC323571 A list of members' pames 1s
avallable for mspection at 10 Upper Bank Steect, London, E14 5)) United kingdom. which 1s also Clifford Chance L1 P's
principal place of business and registered office

Basis of preparation of the Dnancial statements

These audited financal stutements of Clifford Chanee | LP ("the firm” ¢ "L1 ") and 1ts subsidiaries for the year ended 30 April
2023 have been prepared i accordance with U'K-adopted Intemational Accounting Standards and with 1he requirements of the
Compamies Act 2006 as applicable to Lumited Liability Pannerships reporting under those standards

Principal activities
The principal actinvity is the provision of legal services. All resulis derive from conlinung activities
Group structure

Chifford Chance 1s the collechive name for an international legal practice comprising Chifford Chance L P and nts subs:diary
cnlities The consolidated finangial statements incorporate the financial statements of Chiford Chance Ll P and ns subsidany
entiies The consohdated resulis for (he years ended 30 Aprif 2323 and 2022 represent a consolidatuen of all entities controlled
cither darectly or mdwrectly by ChiTord Chance [ LP These entines may he branches partinerslhups or separate corporate entities
{("the Group') Clifford Chance I 1P pracuces through overscas branches wn Abu Dhabi. Amsterdam. Beying, Brussels, Duba
and Shanghas

Manzgement

[he 1 Goochared by the fimns Managmp Pastiner sets the Group's strategy and oversees its implementation. The effectivencss
nl the |1 € as reviewed by shie Partnership Councl. led by the Group's Senior Partner

Ihe finn's conststunion 1 governed by our Partnership Agreement. This requires that certaw issues are subject to a vate of
pariners including the clection of the Managing Partner. the Senior Partner and the Partnership Council. Partners also vote on
the admission of news partners. mergers or acquisitions and other major investments and changes (o the Partnership Agreement
wself Each pariner has a sigle yote. although on cerlain matters (such as the arrangements for remuncration ol equily partners)
pnly equity partners arc entitled 1o vote

The FI G mieets regularls and 1s respensible for aur strategy . the developnient of our competitive position. our relationship with
clients. mid and long-term busmess planning, the performance of the various pans of the Group. and its financial management.

The Partnership Council 1s an elecied body chared by the Senior Partner and also currently comprising of six clected
council members as well as one member appointed from cutside the Group. The Partnership Council meets regularly in person
1o restew the cffectneness of the Group's leadership and management The Partnership Council also ensures that appointnients
12 Ieadershap roles arc handled effectively and with due regard to the interests of the parinership.
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CLIFFORD CHANCE LLP
Financial Statements for the year ended 30 Apnil 2623

REPORT TO THE MEMBERS
Business review

““he results for the vear ended 30 April 2023 reflect another vear of growth for the [irm For the first ime inconie exceeded £2bn.
increasing 5% from £1.96%m to £2,062m reflecting the continued trusi and confidence of our clients and the qualiny and
commitment of cur sfaf¥ and partners.

The war in Ukraine, infllativnary pressure and higher intercst rates created a2 more uncertamn economic eavironment and more
challenging market conditions for the legal indusinn  However despite the resulung decline i transactional activity  the firm
coatinued to deliver income growth, This reflects the well hedged nature of the firm’s business model Revenue from our
Litigation & Dispute Resolution pracuce offset the impact of reduced demand for our transactional practice areas. Income grew
strengly in the | 'k offsetting the more challenging market ensronment impactng Asia Pacific and the Amencas regions

Profit before tax and members' remuneration and profit share was £793m. broadly in line with the prior year

Rellecting increasing demand from our clients. we have contimued to nvest 1n the Parinership of the firm Partner headcount
increased to 593 at 30 April 2023 (2022: 563),

Cash at the year-end was £232m (2022: £378m). The firm mamtained strong cash reserves throughout the year and did not
drawdown on its Revolving Credit Facility (' R{F),

Net assets aftributable to members excluding members intercsts classified as habilities, increased 1o £33%9m as at 3¢ Apnil 2023
(2022: £541m).

Going concern
Having considered current and expected activity levels. together with cashflow forecasts fur the following twelve months from
the date wf approval of the financial statcmuits and the mvmlabaliy of the finns RO the 12 6 has concluded that the Croup has

adequale resources 10 conlmue m operauons for the foreseeable future Accordmgly. the Group continues to adopt the going
concern basis of accountimg in preparmg the financial statements

Financing
I'he Group 1s financed through 2 combhmaton of members’ own caputal and undisinbuted profits Additonalls. a RCF of £150m

15 also available The amount of capital per profit shaning it s determined by the Partnership Agreement with reference to the
[uture requuirements of the Group
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CLIFFORD CHANCE LLP
Financial Statemenis for the year ended 3¢ Apnl 2023

REPORT TO THE MEMBERS
Members' capital and drawings

The term "partper” 11 this Fmancial Statements is used lo refer 1o a mernber of Chfford Chance LLP, or an employee or
consultant with equivalent standing and qualifications. of an individual with equivalent standing n one of the LLP's subsidiany
entitics. Partner can either be equity partner or non-equity partner as per the partnership agreement The 1erm "Member” m this
document 15 used 10 refer only to a member of the LL P

The partners who are not members of the L P receive remuneration on an equivalent basis to members. Their remuneration 15
presented m the Consolidated Income Statement under "Staff and related costs’. Remuneration which 1s not prefit-related and
not discrefionan, that 1s paid 1o members, is treated as a charge against profit and 15 presented in the Consolidated Income
Statcment under '\ embers' remuneranion charged as an expense .

Panncrs are paud a monthly drawing an account. i addition 1o the distribution of profit share Members' capital. which 1s
measured al cost is repayable within six months of retirement. and accordingly, is required to be classified as a liability Each
member contnibutes capital to the Group in accordance with the Parinership Agreement and «n proportion 1o their profit-shanng
units The amount of capital per profit shartng unit is determined by the Partnership Agreement with reference to the future
requirements ol he Group

Profit sharing

The Partnership Agreement of Chifford Chance LLP scts out {he basis for determining the profits avaiiable for sharing between
equity partaers Such profits differ from the profits shown in these financial statements because different accountig pohicies are
applied. and because the members of Chiftord Chance LI P exclude certain equity partners and include certam partners who are
not equily pariners

Qualifying third party indemnity

The Group has put in place. throughout the vear and at the tme ol upproving these financial statements quahifs ing third pary
wdemnity provisions (or all the members of the Group
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CLIFFORD CHANCE LLF
Financial Statements for the vear ended 30 Apnl 27323

REPORT TO THE MEMBERS

Statement of members' responsibilities in respect of the financial statements

The members are responsible for preparing the Financial Statements in accordance with apphcable law and regutation
Company law, as apphed to limned hiability pannerships by the Limted Liabilty Partaerships (Accounts and Audit)
{Application of Compames Act 2006) Repulations 2048 (the "Regulaions”). requires the members to prepare financial
statements for each financial year. 1'nder that law the members have prepared the group and the LLP financial statements in
accordance with Uk-adopted international accounting standards.

Under company law. as applied to imited hability parinerships. members must not approve the {inancial statements unless

they are satisfied that they give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the group and LLP and of the profit or loss of the
group for that peried. [n preparmg the financial statements, the members are required to

sclect sunable accountung policies and then apply them consistently

state whether applhicable _'K-adopted intemational accounting siandards have been followed. subject 10 any materal
departures disclosed and explained in the financial statements,

make judgements and accounting estsmates that are reasonable and prudent. and

prepare the financial statements on the going concern basis unless 15 inappropriate 10 presume thal the group and L LP
will continuc 1n business

-

The members are responsible for safeguarding the assets of the group and LLP and hence for taking reasonable steps for the
prevenuon and detection of fraud and other irepulanitics

The members are also responsible for keepmg adequate accounting records that are sufficient to show and cxplatn the group’s
and LLP’s transactions and disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the financial posiuon of the group and LLP and
enable them to ensure that the financial statements comply with the Companies Act 2006
In 50 far as the members are avware
+ “There is no relevant avdit mformation of which the LL P's anduors are unaware and
« The members have taken all steps that they ought to have taken w mishe themscies aware of any relevant audnt
informaticn and to estabhish that the auditors are aware of that mformatiar

Independent Auditors

The independent auditors of Clifferd Chance 11 P are PrnicewatethouseCoepers LLP, who will be proposed for
reappointment. PricenaterhouseCoopers | P have expressed their wilhingness to continue i office as mdependent auditors.

Designated members
The designated members uning the year ended 30 April 2023 and subsequent fo the year erd are:
Charles Adams

David Harkness
Robin Abraham
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CLIFFORD CHANCE LLP
Financial Statements for the year ended 30 Apni 2023

REPORT TO THE MEMBERS

Streamlined Energy and Carbon Reporting (SECR) under The Companies (Directors’ Report) and Limited Liability

Partrerships (Encrgy and Carbon Report) Regulations, 2018

in accordance with the requirements of Streamtined Energy and Carbon Reporting {SECR) under The Companies (Directors’
Repont) and Limited Liability Partnerships (Energy and Carbon Report) Regulations. 2018. below are the detaids for UK

locations. A list of members is available on the Companies House website

2023 2022
| Energy Cansumption used 1o calculate emissions kWh 133717412 14,894,533
2 Emissions from combustion of gas tCO2e (Scope 1) 412 380
3 Lmissions from combuslion of fuel for transpont purposes 0 02¢ (Seope 1) Not apphicable  Not apphcable
4 Emissions from business travel in remtal cars or employee ~ owned vehicles where 2 .
Group is responsible for purchasing the fuel 1ICO2e (Scope 3}
5 Emissions from purchased electineity 1CO2e (Scope 2 location -baseds 2.154 2,723
6 Total gross tCO2¢ based on above 2,568 3103
T UK's FTE in Nos. 1.980 1.904
3 Intensity ratio: 1CO2¢ gross figure per emplovee {617 (7)) 130 [3:3]
Defraisused  Defrais used
9 Methadelogy loralh U K tor all UK
cnusslons emissions
calculations calculations
10 Emissions from other acsivicies whirch the Graup o ur contrel including operatron of - Not applicable  Not apphicable
facihties 1ICO2¢ (Scope 1)
11 Emassions rom parchased clectnesty 1002« (Scope 2. market - hased factori . 40353
12 Emssions from heat, steam and cooling purchased for own use tC0O2e 1%¢ope 2) Not applicable  Not applicable
13 Emissions from extraction and proguction ol purchased matenials and fuels which the Notapplicable  Not applicable
Group docs not own or control (Scope 33 /1CO2e
14 teisstons from wse of sold products and services whicls e Group does not ewin or Not applicable  Not applcabie
conirol {Scope 3) 1C0O2¢
13 £missions from clectneny related to extraghion . praduction. and transpoctation of fuels  Not applicable  Not applicable
consumed in the generation of clectricity which the Group does nat own or conlrol
(Scope 31+1CO2¢
16 Enussions from purchase of clectnieity that is sold to an end user winch the Group does  Not appheable  Not applicable
not own or control (Scope 37 1 1C02e
17 Lnussions from generaton of electnienty that 1s consumed m a transmssion and Not appheable  Not applicable
distnibubion sysiem which the Group dogs not own or control {Scope 311002
18 Ermisstons (rom transportation of purchased fuels which the Group does not own or Not applicable  Not applicable

control (Scope 3) 1CO2e
19 Frmassions from transpartation of wasie out of financial / operational control (Scope 3}/ Not applicable
WO2e

20 Lossions from transportation of soid products which the Group decs not own or Nat apphcable
control {Scope 3) 1CO2%¢

21 Loussions from employee busmess travel which ihe Group does not own or conirol and 1.420
where not responsible for purchasing the fucl (Scope 3) #tCO2e

22 Cnussions from employees commuting t and from wock which the Group docs not Not applicable

own or control {(Scope 3) F WCO2e
23 Enussions fron leased assets, franchises. and outsourced activites (Scape 3y 1002¢ Not apphicable
24 Ennssions from disposal of waste generated i operations which the Graup does not 635
own or control (Scope 3) 1 1CO2e
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CLIFFORD CHANCE LLP
Financial Statements for the year ended 30 April 2023

REPORT TO THE MEMBERS

Streamlined Energy and Carbon Reporting {SECR) under The Cempanies (Directors' Report) and Limited Liability
Partnerships (Encrgy and Carbon Report) Regulations, 2018 (continued)

2023 2022

235 Emissions from disposal of wasie generated in production of purchased materials and Not applicable Not applicabie

fuels which the Group does not ovwn or control {Scope 1) /1C0O2e

26 Emuissions from disposal of sold products at the end of their life which the Group does  Not applicable  Not applicable

not own or control (Scope 1) /tC0O2e

27 Total gross Scope 3 emissions /1C02¢ 2,057 705
28 Tolal gross Scope L. Scope 2 (location) & Scope 3 emissions / 1CO2¢ 4625 3,808
29 Tolal gross Scope . Scope 2 (market) & Scope 3 emissions /1CO2e 2,469 -
30 Carbon offsets i tCO2e Nol appiicable  Not applicable
31 Domestic Carbon Linns Not applicable  Noil applicable
32 Total annual net enussions /1CO2e (including location based scope 2emissions) 4.625 3.808
33 Toral annual net enussions / 1CO2¢ (including Market based scope 2emissions) 2,469 -
34 UK's FTE in Nos 1.980 1904
35 Addional mtensity ratto: 1CO2¢ net figure per emplovee {including location 234 200

bascd scope 2emissions) {132}/ (34))

36 Addional miensity ratio: 1CO2e net figure per employee (including Market 123 -

based scope 2emissionsH ;33 / (34)}

37 Energy Efficiency Action;

[}

QOur emssicns as set out in the table above are higher than the previous vear which reflects an increase n travel and a
return to office based working Compared with the year ended 30 April 2020. total annual net emussiens have fallen from
8.1231C02¢ to 4.6251C0O2e. We continued to implement encrgy saving initiatives, as set oul below

We have started 1o refurbish the chillers by replacing the existing compressors with enhanced. hughly eflicient refrigerant-
cooled. vanable speed drives (VSD). The chiller installations arc a very significant Joad factor for eleciricimy usage and
energy consumpnion al London office. The sirategy also considers the chitled water dstribuiion systems i the building.
in combination 1o upgrades of the cooling. tawers equipment. to obtamn tunther energy reductions | stimated cnergy
savings until 2028 is 407.961 kWh:

W ¢ have installed new Inverters on Toilet Extract Fans  The esumated energy savings are 9.037 kKWh per year,

We installed new inveners on all three fans and the spray pump of cooling rower 6 10 be more encrgy efficient During a
2 week comparison of cooling lower 13 with no new nverters fitted, the energy savings were 2,34 lmWh,

We have also been monitering on floor enerey consurspuion patierns and demand and have changed »anables on the
Building Management Sysiem :BMS ) to operate building heating and 2/c to reflect oceupancey levels. and

The Emergency staircasc lighting has been replaced with © FDs and sensars 50 1s no longer on 247
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CLIFFORD CHANCE LLP
Fmancial Statements for the year ended 30 Apnil 2023

REPORT TO THE MEMBERS

[n compliance with the Limited Liability Partnerships (Accounts and Audit) (Application of Companies Act
2006) Regulations 2008, as amended by the Limited Liabitity Partnerships (Climate-reiated Financial Disclosure)
Regulations 2022.

lntroduction

As desenibed i more detail 1 the Stralegy section, the Group does not consider chimate change to be a matenal financial
risk to the busmess As a faw firni cur emessions are refatively small, and ouc infrastructure relatively secure The Groug's
business is well hedged and whilst chimate change and the ransition 1o a low carbon economy will affect our chents, we
do not envisage this redueing demand for our advice and services, pravided the firm matntains and builds its relevant
experuse Rather, the Group considers chmate change related advice and services as an area for potential growth

The Group's commitment to teducmg enussions and (o transparency on progress is oriented to our values, and what our
stakeholders can expect of us. despite our operational enussions not having any material impact en global GHG
emissions The Group tracks its climate change-related commuments through specific targets and objectives detailed in
this disclosure We also have policies and contiols i place in respect of our business operation and supply chain that
speatfically address climate change and support aur focus to decarbenise our business.

{'he Group has a plan 1o reduce absolute Scope | and 2 GHG emissions 80% by 2634 from a base year of the year ended
30 Aprik 2020 " FY20"). and to reduce absolule Scope 3 GHG emissions by 47% within the samc imeframe In March
2022 the Groups near-term science-based targets for 2030 were independently asscssed and validated as a key element to
ottr lohger-tetm ann of bemg nel zero

the Group targets net zero ambitas whide at the same tmie séeking to help gur clients swith theirs

The client work the Group undenakes in relation to climate change 15 integrated into the Group's regiens and practice
areas and 15 oflen an clement of a wider scope of work Therefore, s not practical to quanuly separately the value of
work undertaken by the Group m relation to chmate change

Thes disclosure describes the Group's co-ordinated approach 1o us own environmental foolpnnt nciudmg decarbonisimg
uur operavons and supply chan, and advising chients oo chimate change and the energy transition key management
groups with responsitility for this mclude

the Responsible Business Beard {("RB Board") that proposcs and has oversight of the Group's responsible busimess
strategy . as approved by the Execunive | eadershup Group ("LLG™)

the Clobal ESG Board that steers and co-ordinates the activities of the teams and lawyers advising chents on LSG matters
mcluding chmate change

Commonality of people on these Boards  including the same indnidual as Chair  helps 1o connect 1he approach of the
Group o the nisks and opportunatics that climate change presents

The Group uses a yobust Enterpnse Risk Managemenm Frameworh (“the Framework”), which 1s designed to address the
hiketthoad and 1mpact of risks matersalising The Frameswvork tracks climate change-related risks

During the year ended 30 Apnl 2024 ("' Y247). the Group plans to conduct a deeper dive i relation to the financial
mpact of climate-related 1ssues on its business and assess the Group's financial exposure to climate change (both nisks
and opportsnities)y. These nisks are afready on the nisk radar of the Group (sec befow ) yet wse recognise the value of taking
the opportuetits (o deepen the Group's understandimg of s potential {inancial exposure to climate change (batk risks and
npporhonnes)

Fhe Croup s a foundmg member of the Net Zero | anyers Allance commnted o aceeleratng the ransition to Net Zero
b 2050
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CLIFFORD CHANCE LLP
Financial Statements for the year ended 3¢ Apnl 2023

REPORT TO THE MEMBERS

1. Governance

In this section we define the governance structures for the assessment, management and escalation of climate related matiers and
describe the key executrve responsibilities in relation 1o ¢limate management and how key decisions and actions arg taken

The development, smplememation and compliance monitoning of our pelicies are managed through the General Counsel and
Compliance office, led by the General Counsel and Chief Risk & Comphance Officer, who provide regular updales to the
Audit & Risk Commiitec and bolh sit on the Responsible Busimess Board representing the Doing Business pillar of the Group's
responsible business strategy . alongside the Environment pillar lead of the Responsible Business Board who chairs the Group's
Net Zero Delivery Group

These roles and relationships arc cxplained in more detail below, but at a kigh level this shows the interconnectedness between
the different arms of the Group which address chmate change

The Group has policics and controls in place i respect of our business operation and supply chain that specifically address
climate change and support our focus te decarbonise our business These include but are nel limited to our Environment &
Energy Policy, our Climate Change Policy. our Global Procurement Policy . inclusive of our Supplier Relationship Management
Framework and our Supplier Code of Conduct and Standards and our Global Travel Policy.

Table 1: Bodies of the Group invelved in / having responsibility for climate change-related risks and opportunities

GROL P OVERSIGHT DESCRIPTION GOVERNANCE ¢
REPORTING
ELG The Group's opportunitics Has uttumate responsibitity for the  |Oversight from the
and risks sirategy of the Croup inciuding the |Partnership Council
Group's responsible business
strategy
Partnership Council ELG Reviews the performance of the

ELG and any other issues of
concern to the pannership
Reviews both the reports of
Imernal Audit and the Group's
accounts and momtors the Group's
risk management processes

A sub-committee of the
Partnership Counail

Audit & Risk Commutice The Group's tinancial

reporting and risks

Develops, implements and Part of the ELG
monitors comphance with Group
Policy and manages the Group's
Enterprise wide Risk Management
Frameworh

Steering and convening the Group's
ESG-related expenence and
capabilities to provide ESG related
support 10 our chenls

General Counsel’s Office and
Risk & Compliance

The Group's risks

Global ESG Board ESG-related opportunitics for

client work

RB Board

The Group's Responsible
Business strategy

Proposes and has oversight over the
responsible business strategy of the
Group, as approved by the ELG

Reports to the ELLG

Net Zero Delivery Group

The Group's Net Zero
Implementation Plan

Recommends and manages the
Group's Road 1o Nel Zero

imgilementation plan

Reports to the Group's RB
Board

Page

8



CLIFFORD CHANCE LLP
Financial Stalements for the year ended 30 April 2023

REPORT TO THE MEMBERS
2. Governance {contd.)
Global ESU Board

In 2019 the Group created a cress-disciplinary Global ESG Board, drawn from partners and senior colleagues across our Group
who are experts m and working on ESG-related topics The role of the Global £SG Board 15 sieening and convening our
cxpericnce and capabihiies 1 relation 1o our ESG chient work, which includes aspects of chimate change such as sirategic
advice and planning, carbon wading and project nvestment, regulation and compliance, nvestment. financing and due
difigence. international obligations. and trade and hugatwon The Giobal ESG Board therefore has an imporant rolc m
wdentifying and considering chmate related opportunities ansmg from climate related workstreams

Chmate Change Policy

The Group has a Climate Change Policy that takes climate change issues into consideration in our matier acceptance policies In
accordance with the goals of the Pans Agreement on limiling climate change and the Glasgow Chimate Pact. the Group
acknowledges that any such assessmenl needs to consider the Jevel of development and specific needs of vulnerable countries
In most cases where a new matier powentially has a maierial and adverse impact on climate change sssues, we will assess
swhether there are sufficient mitigating/compensating grounds 10 take on the matter [n this way. the Climate Change Policy acts
to sdentfi work swiuch might be high risk from a clmate change perspective and draws these climate-rclated risks ta the
attenteon of partners when considerng whether to take on a now matier. As well as according with the Group's values. this
process assists i managing the potential nsks 1o the Group's busingss in terms of reputation siaff setention and smpact on
snnng other business

Emwonment & Energy Policy

The CGiteup has an Environment & Laergy Policy that takes 1o consideration the decarbomisation of our business operations
and prvides visifuity of the actions we need 1o take as an vrpanisation 1o mimnnise our environmental impact and (il the
science-based targets commiiments we have made

Responsible business sirategy

The Group's responsible business strategy winch comgpnises four pillars: Dong Business. People Community & Pro Bono and

of mast relevance in this conteat - the Environment, 1s overseen by the RB Board The RB Board. comprising parthers and
semor dwectors who include permanenit and co-opted members of the ELG. meets at least quarterly 10 review progress and
discuss strategic mmtiatives  Chns iscluded the development of the Group's Net Zero siraiegy and monionng progress

The Net Zero Delivenn Group. which reports drrectly mito the RB Board. 15 responsible for the debveny of our Net Zero
Programme, inclusi e of owr pear-leny science-based torgets and will report on chimate change nisk und oppontunity The Net
Zero Delnens Group takes a ginbal approach and comprises pillar leads and representatives from across our Group The chair
of Nev Zeru Delivery Group 1s the Depusy Co-Chair of the Respunsible Business Board and lcads the Covironment pillar of the
Group's responsible business sitategy The Co-Lead of the Global Markets, Chients and Froducts Comnultee of the ELG and
the Group's Executive Partner & General Counsel also sit on the RB Board and are the bridge between the RB Board and the
LG

The focus arcas for the Nct Zero Programme include business emissions, travel emvissions. supplier emissions and fawyer
engagement e support defivery of our environmental comutiments. Amongst other things we believe that our (ocus on
emusyions reduciion pre-cipls reguiation and global events which will increase or even prevent use of fossil fuels

To add to and imprey e risk managemeni practices related to climate change, during FY24 the key arcas of focus of the Group's
Net Zere Deliveny Group, workimg with Operauons. Rish and Compliance and other relevant stakeholders, wall be

*+ Metrics asscssing the financial impact of elimate change: consider the appropnatencss of tracking spectfic financial metrnes.
+ Integrating climate risk into the Framework: While we have had a dedicated nsh register on chmate nisks as part of the
| ramework for some ume. we ntend o further enhance and expand the tegrster, sith more staketiolder engagement and a

greater focus on o stership und acceuntaldity

+  Anahsing the resilience of the business model: as explamed above and below our qualitative asscssmient 15 that the Group's
business model 1s resslient to chimate change We will complete a more detaled Group wide analysis i anticipaton of FY24
aniual repart
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CLIFFORD CHANCE LLP
Financial Statements for the year ended 30 Apnlt 2023

REPORT TO THE MEMBERS

2.

i

Governance (contd.)

We rccogmise that by implementing these recommendations. the Group wail strengthen its nsk management practices related to
chimate change This will enhance undersianding. accountability and deciston-making processes. whife demonstraung a
proactive approach towards addressing climate-related risks

Ecal adis offers third-pariy support and validation of the Group's n ansition efforis

The Group has partnered with EcoVadis to help monitor the sustainability performance of the Group and 1ts supphers against a
globally recognised methodology aligned to the UN Global Compact. Intematwonal Labour Organisauon, Global Reporting
Innativ e and 1SO26000. The monitonng through EcoVadis, which requires the Group and 11s suppliers to provide evidence to
suppon review and assessment, validales the progress that the Group is making year-on-year The output of the sustamabiiity
assessment includes a 'corrective action plan’, which enabled the prioritisation of actions during the year ending 3¢ Apnl 2923
10 support continuous improvement efforts.

The Group has used the outputs of the reviews to inform discussions with suppliers. as well as provide transparency around
steps that include but are not limited to more detailed reporting on the Group s Responsible Business website Supply cham
engagement is crucial to the Group achieving its Environmental, Social and Governance commuments. acknowledging that
660 of our scope 3 emissions reside with our purchased goods and services categors

The parinership with EcoVadis allows the Group to work alongside supphers to help supplier to reduce thewr negaise
environmental and social impacts, whilst allowing us to fulfil our long-term ambition of becoming net zero

Some core initiatives inciude;

Seting near-term science-based largets for 2030 as a key clement o our longer-term commitment 10 reach net-zery giobal
emissions by 2050 al the tatest.

Creating highly sustainable waorkplaces, with recent examples mcluding our Perth, Sy dney. Singapore and Dubm offices

Co-Founding the Mct Zoiw Lawyers Altiance, n a venture that brings together the legal indusiny to make collaboratn ¢ efforts
towards, and share best practice on. (he transition

Dnving sustainable change through our Comerstone lmuative. which ams to improve wellbeing in the pourest communities in
Kigalt. Rwanda

In 2022 EcoVadis recogmsed Chfford Chance with a Gold Medal status. placmg Clifford t"hance in the top 5% of all
businesses assessed by FcoVadis and the top 2% of thase Groups assessed sathin the legal and accounumg services sector

Strategy
Clinate change-related risks

As described n sccuion 4 below. the Group's nsk dentfication process identified climate change as an emerging business risk
n 2021 Emerging nishs are tracked and reviewed regularly by the central nsk team and discussed with the ELG and the Audut
& Risk Commutice Until now. on review it has not been considered a material financial risk to the business As such. it will
continue W be monitored and reviewed as descnibed o thus disclosure both as pant of the emerging risks and separatel 1n s
own right as part of Ihe regular review of the Climate rish register In any event. there are repulational risks that might anse
from a failure 10 achieve the Group's own emissions reduction targels or non-compliance with our policies, which the Group 1s
focussed on avording through the mechamisms that this disclosure explamins

Clanate ciang: relaied opposrnisntics
Advisory services related to climate change anil the energy transition

As described above. the Group has a Global I'SG B3oard and has also launched an 1 nergy ‘I'ransition [nitiative that focuses on
legal adsice for arcas includmg renevable cnergy  carbon caplure and slorage. clean hydrogen: energy storage. TV charam?

ransmission and terconnection. ¢arbon tradmg and investment and new nuclear  1he Group regularly advises chents on
climaie change regulauon, the Just Transiion and Transiion Plannmg and sustanable finance, These initiauves fonn part of
the Group's strategy to ensure the Group 1s well pesitioned to serve chients in relation 1o climate change. The Group does not.
however treat chmate change as a separate profit centre. and does nol separatels mowttor reventie from chimane refated work
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CLIFFORD CHANCE LLP
Financial Statements far the year ended 30 April 2023

REPORT TO THE MEMBERS
3. Strategy (contd.)

Partnering

We behieve that it 1s important that Chiford Chance. as a leadmg law firm. shows leadesship in retation to climate change. but
that such leadetsip 15 also important for cur credibiity witk chenrs ni relation to climate-related work The tho climate change:
related initiatives belosw are key examples of this

«  Chiford Chance 15 a founder member of the Ney Zero Lawyers Alhiance {NZLA}Y and the Legal Sector Task Force within the
Sustamnable Markets lutiative (SMI)

» The NZLA commuts to Suppon the goal of Net Zero greenhouse gas (GI1G) emissions by 2050 or seoner, in line with global
efforts to limit warming to 1 3°C (Nei Zero).

« The SMI was launched by King Charles HI m his former role as Mis Royal Highness The Prince of Wales at The World
L.conomic Forum m January 2020 1o mobilise busmess and finance leaders to accelerale the transition 10 3 nel-zero world. The
SM! has formed industry -specific, L LO-level Task Forces 1o drive posmive change 1o protect people and planet from the threats
of ciumate change. including supporting natwre's brodiversiy The Group agreed to be a founding member of the Sustanable
Markets Intias e Legal Task Foree {1 13 he Group’s Senior Partner represents the Group as a member of the LTF.

Also relevant (o the Group's reputation is the Group's community and pro bone work. which include and targes climate change-
focused smtiatives For mstance. the Chillurd Chanee Foundation has provided grant funding of £300.000 to support Save the
Children's engagement wnh the United Nabons Green Chimate Tund and. specifically. the development of ss application for
funding of over LSS 20 mutlion 1o bunld the resilicnce i particular of women and children in the face of chimate change across
five coastal distnicts of Sierma | eone

Climate change-refated (raining and trends

We invest sigmlicant time i research termal traming, client trasmng. scannars and writien briefings focussed on the energy
teansition and associaicd arcas such as cathon trading The process of runnmg cvents and drafting und publishing reports and
bricfings on climate chinge 1ssucs, trends and repulaton devclipmients supperts and enbanees the Group's knowhow and
awareiess of these topics, and so our ability w win and exceute chient mandates

ey

. Risk management

As part of the firm s ERM process the contral team carrics out a formal horizon scanmng exercise where miensa) staheholders

subject matter expents and the Group's leadership are engaged to idenn i hey nisks relevant 1o owr husimess This includes use of
miernal surveys. workshops ang rescarch conducted by the nisk team based on extemal publications and rehable sourees

Climate change was identified as an cierging nisk as part of this process and a nish register dedicated to Chimate-relaled nisks
was developed 1n 2021 which 1dentified phasicat and transiuon risks 1n broad temms, together with controls and mitigatons.

As part of the Group's reporting structure. all emergmg risks are reported to the Audnt and Risk Committee and the b xecutive
[.cadership Group periodically Chmate change was discussed as an emerging risk with the Audu Risk Comnutice in September
2021. the conclusion of which was that the risks idenufied were not financrally matenal w the Group's business as alaw fim

Some climate related nisks are wentified and assessed through our business continuity management processes Operational
resilience and business continuily 15 a standmg vem on the agenda of the Group's Operavons and Business Transfonmation
Committeg, co-chaired by members of the FLG

Climate chaage nsk will continue to be mondored as part of the Group's ERM process

Whilst the Group's abuity 10 meet and progress towards 1ts chmate change commutments does not currentls represent a matenal
financial risk  represents a nisk 1o out reputation and therefore our progress requires 1o be monitored  Our progress towards
the Group's near tenn science-based tarpets for 2030 as a key clement to our longer term cemmitment to weach net-zero global
enusstons by 2030 at the latest are detailed in the objectives and metries below
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CLIFFORD CHANCE LLP
Financial Statements for the year ended 30 April 2023

REPORT TO THE MEMBERS
S. Metrics and targets
Climate change related risks

The Group does not currently have detatled financal-related metrics for <himate change nishs and as described above will
consider whether such metrics could be developed and what they would measure during FY 24

Climate change-related opportiniuies

We consider trends and themes that we anticipate seeing in the medm term and ensure that our teants are developing skillsets
in the high-end arcas of climate change-related legal expertise that cur clients require and that we expect to conlinue 10 grow
We do nol currently track what percentage of the Group's revenue stems from clumate change-related services We are however
increasingly offering climate change-related legal services (sec above) The Group will explore whether 1t can track and report
the revenue generated by this work in the Group's annual report for the vear ended 30 Apnl 2024

Table 2. A veview of our GHG emissions FY2J3 v FY20

Category Emissions (1C0O2e) Emissions (tCO2e) % change (+ /=)
FY23 FY20 (validated by SBTiim FY22) Fy20to FY23

| Direct Emissions 739 00 1.304 00 -43%

2 lndirect Emissions o
(Location-Based) 7.541 39 8,602 00 -12%

2 Indirect Emissions (Market- 1154 07 1 868 00 8%
Based)

I + 2 {Location-Based) 8,280 39 9,906 00 -16%

1 + 2 (Marke1-Based) 3.893.07 5.173.00 «25%

3 Other Indirect Emissions 94.938.04 126.321 36 -25%

I + 2 (Localion-Bascd) + 3 103,238 43 136,427.36 <240,

| + 2 (Market-Based) + 3 9885111 131694 36 -25%

Supph: Chawr (Scope 3)

Qur sustanable procurement programme for the reportng penod has focused on measuring the sustamabibity and carbon
perfarmance of our key suppliers. which has seen a 16% reducuen m our purchased goods and sen ices calcgon enussions
against an | Y20 baseline. For the year endmg 30 Apnl 2023 we have been able 1o use supphier speerfic enussions factors 1o
help reduce our reported cmissions. howeset. we have also noted a heavy rehance on spend data still where suppher enussions
have not been provided.

To suppon cffective decarbonisatton of our supply cham. we are seehaing 1.1 expand our engagement with our suppiters as part
of our programme to suppont suppliers to take positive steps (ewards measuning their carbon reduction and setiing science-
based targets, mcluding providing meines through LeoVadis The monttoring through bcoVadis provides, through vahdation
the practical sieps that our supphers are 1lahmg to mmmise therr environmental pact It alse provides vistiliy of low
e ironment scores and supparts corective action plannng and censultanon with supphiers to support direct and mdirect GHG
enussions reducticn.
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CLIFFORD CHANCE LLP
Financial Statements for the year ended 30 April 2023

REPORY TO THE MEMBERS
5. Metrics and targets (contd.)

Supphy £ bau (Seape 3} {cormd )

The percentage make-up of our purchased goods and services calegory within scope 3 has increased in the vear ending 30 April
2023 from 59 5% 10 66% even though we've been able to reduce out overall supply chain emissions for the reporting period by
16% This has demonstrated a greater reliance on third parties by the Group. Whilst there are benefits of use of third parties,
we know that reliance on them can expose the Group 10 the risk of our suppliers’ management and infrastructure. Tt increases
the complexity of nsk management. as it is inherently difficult to understand the processes, procedures and inner workings of
eur suppliers and can niroduce the types of sk 1o which the Group may not have previously been exposed. This includes. but
1s nol himited to. concentration risk, location risk, legal and /7 or jurisdiction risk, noting that the supplier may be operating in
high-risk countnes Through our sustainable procurement and supplier management programmes, we're focused on enhancing
our supplier risk management approach and in FY 24, as part of the procurement of new tools, focused on country, industry and
country risk assessment, we're hopiag ta review global or regional cconomic distuption arising {rom the impact on seclars with
supphy chains that are heavily concentrated in areas of high physical risk.

As panl of sur commitmen! we have sef 3 goal that our top 50 purchased goods and services suppliers {by enmssions) set 1.5
degree aligned science-based targets to reduce their awn climate impact and will achieve a $0% reduction by 2030. We
acknowledge that this requires regular engagement with our suppliers through our sustainable procurement programme and
have prioritssed targeled acton to support data caplure in EcoVadis. Moving away from data caplure using spend data 1o actual
ennssions data will also help 1o supporl more accurale data capture and minimise any reputational damage through us not
achiev ing our largets

[ ower travel as a result of the Pandemic, has fed w a 79% reduction in Business Travel agarnst the FY 20 hasetine. This 15 not

sustatnable in the longer terne and we will plan ta implament a "Responsible Travel” campaign to ensure compliance with
travel pohictes and communicate the impact of our eny wenmenial lasgets

Table 3. Our business travel and supplier managemen!t largets

Overall Target Business Travel Goals Supplicr Management Goals Impact
Our annual commutment for |- 40% reduction » Top 50 suppliers with seta 15 |- Ahgned to | 5C (whichas
Scope 3 from FY20 reduces  Jimermational thghts and fong- [degree ahgned SB1 and will key for a Net Zero pathway}
by 47% by 2030 haul Mights by 2030 achicve a 50% reduction by 2030
- Flight enission factors to be| MNext level down - next 50 - Remainng cmissions in
reduced by 8% by 2030 suppliers wih high subnussions 2030 T4.7701CQO2c

will be msited to Sustarmable
- Reduce emissions frunt tasis{Pracuccarent Programnte with a
by 25% by 2030 30% reduction by 2020
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CLIFFORD CHANCELLP
Financial Statements for the vear ended 32 Aprd 2021

REPORT TO THE MEMBERS

§. Metrics and targets (contd.)

Chart 1. FY20 to FY 23 - change in total emissions (market based)
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Besed on TEA dute from the 1A ¢2022) Emissions foacrors A rghes resenved, as modified by Chfford Clunec

LLP.

Table 4. Progress versus 30 April 2023 climate change-related targets set by the RB Board and approved by the ELG

Target

Key Performance Indicator

Performance

To reduce the Group's abselute GHG emissions
fruom our T Y20 baseline 1o achies e our near-term
rargets (80% reduction for scape 1 and 2 and
47%0 reduction for scope 3) by 2030 Scope | &
2 emissions reduced by 7 3% (year on sear
average) - Scope 3 enmssions reduced by 4 2%
(year on } ear ayerage)

Near-term 2030 scivnce-based target
implementation plan created and
communicated across the Group
* Science hased targets reviewed to
ensure all reles ant enssion sources
are beimng measured
+ Tolal emissions generated in tCO2¢
- Scope 1 -tCO2e
-Scope2 tCO2e

Scope 3 tCO2e

Sev separate table above

To support the work af environmental NGOs
through pro bono assistance and grants from the
Ctifford Chance Foundation

Percentage number and amount of our
pro bono and community outreach
mandates, and Chfford Chance
Foundation grants that coninbute to
lhe achiesement of the Sustamable
Des elopment Goals relating o the
environment

Opened 19 environment retated pro
bono mandates

We have long-term relatinnships
with 12 pro beno and community
partners There are 17 prosects
swithm these relattonships wath an
enviconmental focus

To participate in recogmised external forums to
infenn and suppont our near-term 2030 science-
based target commitment

Number of external forums attended

7 x forums (Net Zero Lawyers
Alhance. Sustamable Markets
Initrative. CIPS Procurement
Futures. | egal Foresight Stunumit,
Mo g Bevond, EcoVadis Sustam,
Legal Sustainabtlity Alhance)
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CLIFFORD CHANCE LLP
Financial Statements for the year ended 30 Apnl 2023

REFPORT TO THF. MEMBERS

5. Metrics and targets (contd.}

Table 4. Pragress versus 30 April 2023 climate change-related targets set by the RB Board and approved by the ELG

(contd.)

Target

Key Performaace lndicator

Performance

To raise inlernal and externa) a areness and
involverment in our environmental and encrgy
policies to support the delivery of our near-term
2030 scicnce-based 1arget conunment

Percensage of employed engaged
and/or trained
» No of Campaigns

We have progressed fraining for our

|sustainable procurement programme

and have a plan in place to support

traming 7 upskill for our Sourcing

team and Contract Managers /
Owners 5 x cohorts (50
participants) have been tun for our
SRM Learning Programme, which
includes, bul is not imited o,
sustainabidity

2 {World Environment Day and
Earth Hour)

To Jeverage our Sustainable Procurement
Programme to understand our supphers” mdirect
and direet GHO emissions and 1o use the outputs
from independent verification and analysis 1o
report and reduce our scope 3 ciussions and m
collaboraiton with our supply chaw, fulfil our
near-tem 2030 science-based target comnutment

« %y Key suppliers taking acuon on
encrgy consumption & GHGs

* %9 Ry supplicrs that have waste
management procedures in place

* %4 Kes suppliers reporting on energy
consumption & GHGs

- ®a Koy supplicrs signed up to
Scwence Based Targets hmbative

+ %4 Key supplicrs that have
acknowledged our Supplier Code

» Na. of Suppliers Engaged (Global}

+ Total emissions generated’ in (CO2e:
- Scope | - 1CO2e

Scope 2 1CQO2e

Scope3 1CO2c

83% of our key suppliers are taking
achion on encrgy consumption &
GHGs

83% of our key suppliers have waste
managenient procedures in place
67% of our key supplicrs ate
reporling on encrgy consumption &
GHGs.

4 3% ot our key suppliers have
signed up to Science Based Targets
Intiative

100 %% of our key supplicrs have
acknowledged our Supplhier Code
66 of vur key suppliers have been
rated through EcoVadis so far. with
27 assessments in progruss,

See separawe table above

Report 10 the members, the strcamlined eneegy and carbon repont and task force on climate-related financial disclosures are sipned
an behalfof the Executive Leadership Group by

N e

Char Patrick Glvd
Managing Partner Chiel lintaacial Officer
1y Juby 2023 1§ Juty 2023
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Independent auditors’ report to the members
of Clifford Chance LLP

Report on the audit of the financial statements

Opinion
In gur gpinion Cliffard Chance LLP's group financizl $tatements and LLP financial slatemenls (the “financial slalements™):

- give a true and fair view of the state of the group’s and of the LLP's affars as al 30 Apsil 2023 and of Ihe group's profit and the group's and
LLP’'s cash flows for the year then ended"

+ have been propery prepared in accordance wilh UK-adopled international accounling standards as applied i accordance wilh the
provisions of lhe Companies Act 2008; and

+ have been prepared n accordance wilh ke requirements of tha Companies Act 2006 as app'ed to limited liability partnerships by the
Limited Liability Partnerships {Accounts and Audit) (Appiication of Companies Act 2006) Regu ations 2008.

We have audited the financial slatements, ncluded within the Financial Stalements (\he "Annual Repont”). which comprise. consolidated and
limited liability partnership balance sheetls as at 30 April 2023, consolidated income statement, consolidaled statemen! of comprehansive
income, consolidated and lim ied -abi*ly parinership stalemants of changes in equity and coasolidaled and limited fiabdity partinershup cash flow
statemenls for lhe year then ended. and the notes to the Fnancial slaternents. which mclude a desedpt.on of the significant accounting policies.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our augit in accordance with nternational Standards on Audibng {UK]) {18As (UK)") and applicable law Our responsibitities under
ISAs (UK) are further descnbed in the Auditors' responsib ities for \he aud't of the financial slatemenls section of our report Ve believe Ihat the
audit evidence we have obtained s sulfficienl and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion

Independence

We remained independenl of the greup in accordanee with Ihe elh cal requirements that are relevanl lo aur audit of lhe financial slatemen!s in
the UK. which includes the FRC s Ethica Slandard, and we have (ulfited cur athar eihical respgnsibilibes in accordance wilth these
requiremenits

Conclusions relating to going concern

Based on the work we have performed, we have nol identified any material uncertaintias relating to evenis or condilions that, individually or
collectively, may cast significanl doubt on the group's and the LLP's abilty lo conlinue as a going concedm for a period of al lgasl tweive months
fram when the financial statements are authorised for issue.

In auditing the financial staiements. we have concluded that the members’ use of the going concem basis of accounting in the preparaban of the
financiat statements is appropriale.

However, because not all luture events ¢r conditions ¢an be predicted, this conclusion is not a guarantee as to the group's and the Li P's abisity
{o conlinue as a going concern.

Qur responsibiblies and the responsibilitres of the members wilh respect lo going cancern are described in the relevant sections of Ihis report
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Independent auditors’ report to the members
of Clifford Chance LLP (continued)

Reporting on other information

The other information comprises all of the information n the Annual Report ather than the financial statemenls and qur auditcrs’ repont thergon
The members are responsible for the other informalion Ous opinion on 1he financial slalements does not cover the other informaton and
accordingly, we do not express an audil opinion or any formn of assurance thereon

In connection with cur audil of the financial stalements, our responsibility is to read the olher information and, in doing So. consider whether the
ather nformation 1s materially inconsistent with the financial statements of pur knowledge obtained in the audil, or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated. f we identify an apparent maleral ing islency of B i ‘ent, we arg requited lo perform procedures to
conclude whether there s a matenal mi { of the fi | s of & i ment ¢f lhe other nformalion It, based on
the work we havs parformed we concluda that thera is a matenal messtalement of this other itformation we are required Lo report that fact We
have nolhing ‘o report based on these responsibilit es

Responsibilities for the financial statements and the audit

Responsibilities of the members for the financial statements

As explained rnore fully i dha Siatement of members' responsibilities n respecl of Jhe financial statements, ha members are respansible for the
preparation of the financai slatements in accordance with the appticable framework and for being satisfied thal they gve a true and far view
The members are also responsible for such inlernal control as Ihey delermine s ecessary to enable the preparatza aof financial slalements that
are free from matenal misstatement, whether due o frauq or emor

In preparing the finanoal slatemenits, the members are respinsible for assessing the group's and the LLP s abiity 1o continue as a gong
concem, disclusing. as applicable maliers related to gomg concern and using the going concermn basis of accounting uniess the members either
intend 1o liquidate Iha group or tha LI P or lo cease operal e S of have nw reaksic allamative but to do so

Auditors' responsibilities for the audit of the tinancial statements

Our objeclves are ko oblain reasonable assurance about whether the financial siatements as a whole are free fom mateial missiatement,
whether due lo fraud or efror, and to 1ssue an audilors repon that includes our opinion Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but
15 not a guarantee that an audd conducted in accordance with SAs (UK) will always detecl a malefial misstatement when it exists
Misslatements can arse from {raud or error and are cons dered matenal of, indwidually o in the aggregate, hey could reasonably be expected lo
influence Ihe econom ¢ decisions of users taken on iha basis of these financial siatements

Inegulanties. including fraud. are nstances of non.compliance wilh [aws and regulations We desigh procedures in ng with our respon sibilities,
quilined above, to detect matenal misstalements in respect of iregularities, including fraud The extent to which our procedures ara capable of
detecting irregulanties, inciuding fraud. is detailed below

Based on gur undersianding of (he groug and indusiry we dentified that the principal nsks of man-compifance with laws and regulat'ons refated
to Soficitors Ragulauon Autharity regulation, and we considered the axant to which non-compliance might have a material effect on the financial
slalements We also considered those IswE and reguialions that have 3 direc! impac! on the financia) stalemenls such as the Companies Acl
2006 ax applied to iimited liabvity partnarships (Accounts and Audil) {Appticalion af Companies Act 20068} Regulations 2008 We evaluated
managemen's i wes and opportunities far fraudulen! manipulation of the financial slalements {including the risk of cveride of controls),
and determ ned lhat the pdncipal fisks were related lo posting of inappropriale journal entries 16 madipulate accounting records, overriding
retavant conlrols to prepare incorrect financia information and managemeni blas in accounling estimates Audit procedures perfarmed by the
engagement team ncluded.

« Eva uation of the design of management's conirols cesigned lo prevenl and delect imeguiarilies,
* Review of alf internal aucrl reports issyed to the Audit and Risk Commiltee which hightighted any 1ssues with respeci to potential fraud.

- D'scussion with managemenl. the Chel Risk and Compliance Officer and the Head of tegal. including consieration of known ar
suspecied instances of nen-compihance wih Jaw and regulations and fraud,
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Independent auditors’ report to the members
of Clifford Chance LLP (continued)

Auditors’ responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements (continuad)

= Challenge of assumplions and udgemenls made by managemenl in respect of significant accounting estimates; and
+ Tasting unusual or unexpected Jaumnal entnes, pan cularly thase impacling revenus.

There are inherant lmitations n the auwdil procedures described abave We are less likely o become aware of inslances of non-compliance wilh
faws and ragulations that are nol closely relaled to events and tcansaclions reflected in the financial stalements. Also, the risk of ngt detecling a
materiat misslatement due o fraud is higher than the risk of nol detecting one resulting from error as fraud may involve deliberale concealment
by, lor example, forgery or ntentional misrepresentations or through collus-un.

A lurther descripton of our responsibiies for the audit of the financial statemenls s Jocated on the FRCs websile at
worw frc org.uk/auditorsrespensibilit es This descnplion forms part of our auditors’ repon

Use of this report

This repor, iacluding the opin ons, has been prepared for and only for the members of the partnership as a body in accordance with the
Companies Act 2008 as applied lo hmited lability partnersh ps by the Limited¢ Liabilily Partnerships {Accounts and Audil) (Applicaton of
Compamies Act 2006} Regquiat ons 2008 and for no cther purpose We do nol n gwvng these tpinions accept or assume responsibility for any
olher purgose or to any other person lo whom this report is shown ar it whose hands il may come save where expressly agreed by our pnor
consent in writing

Other required reporting

Companies Act 2006 exception reporting

Under the Campanies Act 2006 as appdcable to imited | ab lity parinershups we are required to rapart 12 you f in #er epinier:

+ we have nol oblained all \he infarmation and explanations we require for our audil, or

« adequale accounling records have not been kept by the LLP 2; relums adequale for our aud | have npl beea recewved Iram branches not
visilec by us; or

= the LLP financial stalernenis are not in agreement with the accaunting records and relims.

We have np exceptions to repon ansing Iram this respensibilily
r'--‘-\
f_/f' (-Aj
-} VT

Gilly Lord {Senior Statutory Auditar}
for and on behall of Pncewaterhouse Coopers LLP
Chartered Accounlants and Slalulory Auditors
London

July 2022
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CLIFFORD CHANCE LLP
Financial Statements for the year ended 30 April 2023

CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT

Year ended 30 April Nate 2023 2022
fm £m
(restated)*
Revenue 4 2062 1,969
Other operating income 3 3

Operating costs

S1alTf and related costs 5 (964) {869)
Onher sperating costs (273) {268)
Net imparment losses on financial ussets 26 {14) (20)
Operating profit 814 815
Finance mcome 3 3

Finance costs (24} 21)
Finance costs - net 8 21 {18)

PROFIT BEFORE TAX AND MEMBERS' REMUNFRATION AND

PROFIT SHARE 733 L
Members remuncration charged as an cypense 9 {20) (18
PROFIT BEFORE TAX AVAILABLE FOR PROFIT SHARE AMONG

MEMBERS 6 773 779
Income tay expense 10 (31) {40)
PROFIT FOR THE FINANCIAL YF AR AV AIL ABLF FOR PROHIT 242 130

SHARE AMONG MEMBERS

The results derive from continuing operations

» Refer note 28 for restatement ol previous year financial siatements for reasoms explaned m that note
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CLIFFORD CHANCE LLP
Fmanuial Statemenis for the year ended 32 Apnit 2023

CONSQLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

Year ended 30 April Note 201) 2022

£m im
(resiatecd)*

PROFIT FOR THE FINANCIALYEAR AVAILABLE FOR PROFIT

SIARE AMONG MEMBERS 742 739

frems that will not be reclassified subsequently to the Consolidated Income

Statement

Actuarial gan on defined benefit pension scheme k4! 7 123

Deferred tax charge relating (o items nol reclassified |G 1511

ltems that may be reclassified subsequently to the Consolidaied Income Statement

Net foreign exchange differences recogmsed within reserves 24 14 4%

Other compretiensive income for the vear net of tax 51 123
793 862

TOTAI COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FORTHEYEAR

* Refer note 28 for restatement of prey ivus vear financial statements for reasons explamed i that note
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CLIFFORD CHANCE LLP
Financial Statements for the year ended 30 Aprid 2023

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET

Asatl
As at 30 April Note 2023 2022 May 2021
fm £m £m
(resiated)*  (restated)®
ASSETS
Property. plant and equipment 13 73 65 72
Right-of-use assets 27 453 329 3l
Finance leasc receivablce - non-current n 70 98 120
Deferred tax asset 19 1 1 5l
Total Noo-Current Assets 597 493 554
Accrued income 26 176 369 305
Trade and other receivables 15 601 520 457
Finance lcase receivable - current 27 24 24 23
Amounts due from members 16 87 8! 88
Cash and cash cquivalents 17 232 378 370
Total Current Assely 1,320 1,372 1,243
TOTAL ASSETS 1917 1,865 1,797

LIABILITIES

Trade and other payahles 18 506 492 457
Fraploy ec benefit obligatons 20, 21,22 18 2} 21
Provisions 20 - 1 2
Lease hability = cnrment 27 a1 94 87
Members capual - current 23 28 31 31
‘FTota} Current Liabilities 643 639 598
}V miployee benefit chligations 20.21.22 207 266 429
Provisions 20 39 54 28
[ ease hiability - nen-cument 27 343 461 475
Members™ capital - non-current 23 BG LIl 126
Total Non-Current Liabilities 877 892 1,058
TOTAL LIABILITIES 1,520 1,531 1.656
TOTAL EQUITY 397 334 141
Total Liabilities Excluding Members' Interests Classilied As Liabilities 1,358 1.324 1,428

Net Assets OF Members Excluding Members' Interests Classified As

L iabilities 24 559 541 372
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CLIFFORD CHANCE LLP
Financial Statements for the vear ended 30 Apnl 2023

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET

Asatl
As at 30 April Note 2023 2022 May 2021
fm £m £m

frestated)*  (restated)*
REPRESENTED BY:

Provision for annuities due to current members 20,22 48 b5 74
Members' capital - current 23 28 3 31
Members' capnal - non-current 23 86 111 126
Members' mterests classified as lrabiliies 162 207 231
Reserves 397 334 141

K59 541 K}F

Total members' interests:

Amounts due from members 16 (B7) 81 (88)
Provision for annuities due 10 current members 20,22 48 65 74
Members' capital - current 23 28 3l 3
Members' capital - non-current 23 86 L1 126
Reserves 397 334 td1
472 460 284

* Refer note 28 for restatement of previous year financial statements for reasons explained w that note

The financial statements on pages 19 to 69 have been approsed by the members and were signedon V3 July 2023 by Charles
Adams. designated member

Charles Adams
Chiflord Chance 1 | I

Pagn 12



CLIFFORD CHANCE LLF

LIMITED LIABILITY PARTNERSHIP BALANCE SHEET

As at 30 April

ASSETS

Investments

Property | plant and equipment
Righi-of-use assets

Finance tease receivable - non-current
Total Non-Current Assets

Accrucd income

Trade and other receivables
Fimance lease recetvable - corrent
Cash and cash equivalents

Tatal Current Assets

TOTAL ASSETS

LIABILITIES

Trade and other payables
Amaounts due 1o members
Empleyee benefit obligations
Provisions

| case lrabuliy - curremt
Memnbers' ¢apatal - current
Total Current Linbilities

L.mpiey ce benefit ubligations
Provisions

Lease habiliny - acn-currem
Members' capital - non-current
Total don-Current Liabilitics

TOTAL L IABILITIES

TOTAL EQUITY

Total Liabilities Excluding Certain Members' Intercsts Classified As

Liabilities®

Net Assets/(Liabilities) Of Members Excluding Certain Members'

Interests Classified As Liabilities

Page 23
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Asall

ote 2023 2022 May 2021
fm £m im

fresiated)®  frestated)*

12 225 225 5
14 14 12 9
27 122 125 120
21 69 G1 107
430 453 241

26 162 163 136
13 660 529 478
27 17 17 17
17 96 138 136
935 847 767

1.365 1,300 1,008

¥ 592 392 592
L& 35 36 7
20.21.22 15 19 18
20 1 2
27 46 45 44
23 28 3l 31
16 724 694

20.21.22 193 248 138
20 28 44 17
27 220 259 276
23 86 i 126
527 662 557

1,243 1,386 1,251
122 {86) (243)

1,087 1,188 "_-_l.029
24 278 112 {21)




CLIFFORD CHANCE LLP

Financial Statemenis for the vear ended 31 Apal 2023

LIVIITED LIABILITY PARTNERSHIP BALANCE SHEET

As at 30 April Note

REPRESENTED BY:

Provision for annuitics due W current members 20.22
Members' capital - current 23
Membets' capial - non-current 23
Members' interests classtfied as liabilities

Reserves

Total members' interests:

Amounts due to members (not capital in nature)” 16
Provision for annuities due to corveni members 20,22
tMembers' capial - carrent 23
Members' capital non-current 23
Resenves

2023

Em

Asatl
2022 Mav 2021
£m £m

fresiatect)*  (restaied)*

42 36 83
28 31 31
86 111 126
156 198 222
122 (86) (243)
278 112 (21)
33 36 7
42 j6 a5
28 3 31
86 il 126
122 {86) {243)
313 148 (14)

As permitted by Section 408 of the Companics Act 2006, the LLP has not presented ils own income stalement A profit of £648m

(2022 £377m (restaled)) is included within the financial statements of the LLP.

* Refer note 28 for restatement of previous year financial statements for reasons explained in that note

# In presenting the Limited Liablity Partnership Balance Sheet. total liabilities are also presented excludmg those members'
nterests which as per accounting standards are classifed as liability but which we regard as capital in nature

The financial statements on pages 19 to 69 have been approved by the members and were sigred on 1 2 July 2023 by Charles

Adams. designated member

Charles Adams
Clhifford Chance L [ P
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CLIFFORD CHANCE LLP
Financial Statements for the year ended 30 April 2023

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

Balance as at | May 2021
Restaternent adjustment {note 28)
Balance as at 1 May 2021 (restated)

Profit for the financial year avalable
for profit share among members*

Other comprehensive income for the year*

Total comprehensin ¢ imceme for the
year

Profit disinbutions and related tax
Change in provision for annuities
Change in members’ capital (note 23)

Ralance as at 30 Apnil 2022

Profit fer the financial vear available

for profit share among members

Other comprehensive income for the year
*otal comprehensive meome for the vear
Profit disinbutions and reiated 1ax
Change i provision for annuttwes
Change i members' caputal (note 23)

Balance as at 30 April 2023

* Sce note 28 for details on the restatement

Provison
Jor  Members’
Foreign Total Annuities Capital  Members’
Exchange Other Reserves classified as classified as  Capital &
Resenes Reserves Equity flabilities liabilities Reserves
£m £fm fm £ £m £m
frestated)  (restated)  (restated)

135 106 14! 74 157 372

8 (8 - - - .

43 98 141 74 157 372

739 739 - .

739

49 74 123 - - 123

44 813 862 - - 862
- (669) {669) - - (669
: - %) . %
- - fi3) 113

92 242 334 63 142 341

- T42 742 - EN g

34 17 ST - 3

34 759 793 - 793
- (730) (730) . (73m
. . R T - fi7)
- . (28) 28)

126 271 397 48 L 359
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CLIFFORD CHANCE LLP
Financial Statements for the vear ended 30 Apnl 2023

LIMITED LIABILITY PARTNERSHIP STATEMENT OF CHANGES [N EQUITY

Balance as at 1 May 2021
Restatement adjustment {note 28)
Balance as at 1 May 2021 (restated)

Profit for the financial year available
far profit share among members*

Other comprehensive income for the
year®

Total comprehensive income for the
year

Profit distributions and related tax*
Change in provisien for annuities
Change in members' capital (note 23)

Balance as at 30 April 2022

Profit for the hnancial vear avatlable
for profit share among members
Orher comprehensive income for the
year

Total comprehensive income for the
vear

Profit distnbutions and relaied tax
Change i provision for annuitics

Change in members' capital (note 23}

Balance as at 30 April 2023

* See nole 28 for details on the restatement.

Members'
Foreign Oth Total | Provision for Capital

Exchange R ! '“ Resenves Annuities  classified  Members'
Reserves eserves Equity clnssified as s Capitnl &
fiabilfties  {labilities Reserves

fm fm Em £m £m £
frestaiedy  (restated) (resiated)
26 (387) {361) 63 157 (139)

k) 115 118 - - 118
29 (272) {243) 635 157 {21)

. 377 377 - - 377

17 78 93 - - 95

17 453 472 - - 472

- (315) {313) - - f315)

- - - 9) - 9

. - (15) (13)

16 {132) (86) 56 142 12

- 648 648 - - 648

13 17 30 - . 0

13 0665 678 - - 678

- {470) {4700 - - (70

R - - 4} - (14

. . . - (28) 28}

59 63 122 42 14 28
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CLIFFORD CHANCE LLF
Financiai Statements for the y ¢ar ended 30 Apnl 2023

CONMSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT

Y ear ended 30 April 12023 2022
Note £m £m
trestated)

Cash flows from operating activities:

Profit before tax and members' remuneration and profit share 93 797

Interest pad 8 24 19

Interest Teceived : h (31
Depreciation 13.27 B4 78

Conmbunions 1o defined benefil pension scheme 2% 24) (P33
Amounts credited for annwiy obhigations 22 (10) (3)
Annurties paid to former partners 22 {21} (203
(Decrease}increase in property and other provisions {12) 13

Remuneration ta members 9 (9 (16)
Operating cashflon before movements in working capital 812 841

increase 1n accrued income ) (36)
Increase In recers ables {75} (56)
Increase in payables 6 26

Cush gewerated from operations 739 758

Income taxes paid 33 (22

NET CASH GENERATED FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES 106 733

Cash flow s from investing activities:

Purchase of property. plant and cquipment 13 29) 3
Proceeds from sublease n 26 26

NET CASH (USEDYGENERATED FROM EINVESFING ACTIVITIES 3) 1l

Cash flows from finuncing activities:
Drraw :ngs and distribunons to mentbers (708) (632)
Repaymemt of lcase hahilines (mchuding

inteceat pard £14im (2022 £i2m) 1 tHn H1on
Capiisd nel repavments 1o members 23 (28) (15}
NET CASH OUTFLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES (853) (748)
NET DECREASE IN CASH AND CASHEQUIVALENTS {150} 4)
Cash and cash equivalents at begmming of year 378 370
[ ftects of foreign exchange rate changes 4 12
CASHLAND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT END OF YEAR 17 232 378
Recanciliation of liahilities arising from financing activities:
2023 2022
Members Members
Capinal Capital
fm fm
QOpening 142 157
Financing cash flows i .
Capia’ transferred (28) (15)
Closing 11d 142
Net Financing  Financing Translation
Lease Liabibmies Opening  Additions  cash flons charge  differemce Closing
£m fin £m £ fm fin
For the year ended 30 Aprd 2023 535 178 (117 I4 6 636
For e year ended 30 Apnl 222 362 73 (101} 12 7 333
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CLIFFORD CHANCE LLP
Fi-anc al Statenenss for the year ended 30 April 2023

LIMITED LIABILITY PARTNERSHIP CASH FLOW STATEMENT

Year eaded 30 April Note 2023 2022
in £m
{restated)
Cash flows from opperating activities:
Profit before tax and members' remuneration and profit share 651 404
Interest paid 16 10
Interest received 2} 3
Depreciation P+ 21 25 24
Contributions to defined benefit pension scheme 21 (24) (3
Amounts credited for annutty obligauons 4 11}] 3
Annuities paid to former partners 22 (18) (18)
{Decrease) increase 1n property and other provisions (13) 4
Dividend income* {138) -
Impainment of financial assets 1 2
Operaiing cashflow before movements in working capital 468 418
Decrease/(increase) in accrued mcome 1 {29}
Decreasef(increase) in recenables (129 33)
Increasefidecrease) m payables 149 4}
Cash generated from operatioms 489 332
Income tases paid (9) {10
NET CASH GENERATED FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES 480 322
Cash Mows from ins esting activities:
Purchase of property. planl and equipment o 6 8)
Proceeds from sublease 20 18
Duovidend recened® 10 -
NET CASH GENERATED FRONM INVFSTING 24 10
Cash flows from financing activities:
Drawings and distributions to members {459) (267}
Repaymen of lease habilines (including interest pad .
£7m (2027 £6m)) (59} 149
Capital net repay ments 1o members 23 {28) (13)
NET CASH OUTFLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES {546) (331)
NET (DECREASE) INCREASE IN CASIL AND CASH (42) 1
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 138 136
E-tiects of foreign exchange rate changes - |
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT END OF YEAR +7 96 138
Reconciliation of lisbilities arising from financing activities:
2023 2022
Members Members
Capital Capital
£m Em
Opening 142 157
Financing cash flows - -
Caputal wansferred (28) (13)
Closing 114 142
Net Financing Financing Translation
Lease Laab linies Opening Additions  cash flows charge  difference Clesing
£fin tm £m fm im fm
fo the vea- ended 39 Apal 2073 304 13 (39) 7 | 266
J'or the year ended 3v Apni 2022 320 26 (49) 6 1 304

*(ldtord Chance | LP recerved dividead ingeme of £138m during the year (21122 £nid) of which £10m was recerved in cash and

the remaimag £1481m was oftset aganst an idra-group payable balance
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CLIFFORD CHANCE LLP
Fiancia! Statements for the year ended 30 Apnl 2023

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1 General

Chfford Chance LLP is a limited hability partnership registered i England and Wales and wuh offices in principal
business centres worldwide. Chifford Chance LLP 15 the ultimate parent of the Clifford Chance Graup.

2 Significant accounting policies

a) Basis of preparation

b

—

These financiat statements present the consolidated and standalone resuits of Clifford Chance LLP and ats subsidiany
cnnes for the year ended 30 Apnl 2023

The consolidated and standalone financial statements of Clifford Chance LLP have been prepared i accordance
with UK adopted intemational accounting standards in comformity with the requirements of the Companies Act
2006 as applicable fo | imited I rabdity Parinerships reporting under those standards.

The Group has applied the follow ing amendments for the first ime for their annual reporting period commencing |
May 2022:

+ Property. Plant and Equipement Proceeds before Intended L'se Amendments to 1AS 16

* Omerous cantracts - Cost of' t ulfilling a Contract  Amendments to 1AS 37

« Annual Improvements to 11 RS Standards 2018-2020. and

« Reference to the Conceptual Iramework - Amendments o [FRS 3

The amendments histed ahose did not have any impact on the amounts recogmsed in prior penieds and are not
expected to signiticantly affect the cutvent or future pertods

Certmn new accounting standards and mterpretanons hase been published that are not mandaton for 30 April 2023
reporting periods and have not been carly adopted by the Group, We are m process of assessing the impact of the
mplementation of IFRS 17 an our accounting tor annuitics duc to members No other accounting standards are
expected to have a material impact on the Group in the currenl or future reporuing periods and on leresceable future
transactions

Refer to note 28 for restatement of presious year linancial statements for reasons explamed m that npte
Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial statements of Chi¥ord Chance LLP and nts subsidiary
entiies Subsidiary entities are thosg entities conrolled by Chifford Chance LT P, which may be partnerships. lnnted
Liabihty parinerships or separate corporate entiies Centrol exists when Clifford Chance | LP 15 expased to, or has
nighis to. variabic retutns from its mvolyement with the enury and has the ability 10 aflect those retarns through its
power to direct the activiues of the entithv  The financial statements of subsidiary entties are mcluded in the
consolidated financial statements from (he date that control commences until the date that controf ceases As
permilied under section 408 of the Compames Act 2006, no separale income statement 15 presented for Clifford
Chance LLP

fntra-group balances and transactions are ehminated in the consolidated financial statements
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CLIFFORD CHANCE LLP
Mnancial Statements for the year ended 30 Apnil 2023

2 Significant accounting policies {(continued)

)

d

—

e}

Revenue

Revenue represents amounts chargeable 10 chents for professional services provided, excluding external
disbursements where the Group acls as an agent and sales tax. The Group ss generally paid in arrears for 1ts services
Invorces are typically payable withim 30 to 60 days

The Group provides services 10 clients under a contract or maller. [n most nsiances. services within a matter are not
considered disuncl and are therefore accounted for as a single performance obhgation However, where a contract or
niatter requrres senvices that are capable of being distinet. are distinet m the context of the contract and are accounted
for as scparate performance obligations. revenue 15 allocated to ¢ach of the performance obligation based on a
standatone fee

Typically performance oblgations are satisfied over time as services are provided because the chent receives and
uses the benelits simultaneously Revenue for vanable ume-based coniracts, 1s recopmised as the customer 15 recening
these services For fixed or capped fee contracts. revenue is recogmised based on the proportion of the service
performance with an mput method used 10 measure progress for each performance abhigation The mput method used
1s the v alue of time recorded 10 date relanve 10 the total value of time expecied to be incurred 1o complete the scope of
the mawer The Group has apphed the practical expedient of IFRS 135 paragraph 121 10 not disclose formation
aboul remammg performance obligations as the performance obligations are part of contracts or matters with an
onginal expected duration of one year or less

Revenue for services which 15 contingent and dependent on extermal events (for example the completion of a
transaction hsting or fund fonmation). 1s recognised when the event 15 highly probable and a significam reversal 1s
unlikely The revenuc constramt 1s applied until such time as the event has occurred. connungent fees have been
confimied with the client or there remans hitte uncertainty that the event wall oecur

The valuation of accrued weome and calculanon of revenue 1s dependent on judging the likely engagement outcome
for matiers s ith a conungent fee arangement

Members' remuneration, drawings and distributions

The partners who are not members of the LLP recene remuneration on an equivatent basis 1o members. [her
remuneration is presented in the consehidated income statement wnder "StafY and related costs'. Remuncration which 1s
not prafit-related and not discretionan that 15 paud to certam partuers whi are members is treated as a charge against
profits and is presented m the consolidated income statenient under "Mentbers’ remuneration charged as an expense’

Partners are paid a mombhly dravwing in advance of the calculation and pay ment of profit distributions. Such amounts
are classified as amounts due from members within current assets Distributions of profits w1 members are recognised
withm equity when the distribuiion occurs,

Foreign curreney

Transactions in foreign currencies are recorded at the foreign exchange rate ruhing on the date of the transaction
Monetary assets and Habiliies denominated in foresgn currencies at the balance shect date are wanstated at the foreign
exchange rates nuling on that date Foreign exchange differences ansing are recognised in the consolidated income
statement. The presentation currency of the Group 1s Pound Sterling (GBP}.

Ihe resolis of offices. which do not prepare their financral stalements n GBP. are translated into GBP at the average
rates for the year which approximate to the rates at the date of the transactions  The balance sheets ol these offices are
ranslated at the exchange rate ruling on the balance sheet date | wehange difterences arising from the retranslation of
opaung net assets. (ogether with the difterence between the come stalement transiated at the average and closing
exchange rates, andd certan exchange difterences anisig on the disinbution of profits to members. are recorded m the
foreign cxchange reserve
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CLIFFORD CHANCE LLP
Financial Stalements for the year ended 30 Apnil 2023

2 Signilicant accouating policies {continued)

f)

-

g

h

-

Progerty, plant and equipment

Property. plant and equipment 15 stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and any recognised impairment loss.
Depreciation 1$ charged to the mceme statement on a straight-line basis over the estimaled useful lives of the assets
The estimated useful lives arc as follows

L easchold improvements - 10 15 years. or hfe of lease 1f shorter
Office and JT equipment

- Personal computers and smalt [T assets - 2 -5 years

- Other equipment - 3 -5 years
Furniture and fithings - 3 - 10 years

Intangible assets

Caosts associated with the development of the global accounting and practice management sy stem, including imternal
costs direcily atiributable 1o development were recogmised in the financal statements as an intangible asset  The
Finm expected 10 derive economic benefits from the development costs capitalised in this manner over a peniod of ten
vears ‘These tinangible assets are now fully amorhised

Soflware as a Service (S5aaS! confipuration and custamisation costs are expensed as incurred  unless thes creake a
separately wdentifiable asset controlled B e Virm, m which case they are capuahiscd

Impairment of tangibie and intangibie assets

At each balance sheet date. the Group reviews the carmving amounts of its tangible and mntangable asscts to delermine
whether there 1s any indicauon that those assets have suffered an mpairment loss 1 any such sndication exists. the
recoverable amount of the assel 1 estimated o order o deternune 1he extent of any impairment loss [f the
recoscrabhe et of an asset i ushimated to be bess than it carmying amoung, the carrying amount 15 reduced to us
recoverable amoum and the impainnent loss 1s recogmised as an expense immediately

Pensions

i Defined comrribution plans
Connbutions 10 defined contrbution pension plans are recogmsed as an expense n the icome statemenl as
meurred

ii.  Defined benefit scheme
Dcfined benefit scheme the assets of which are held mn separate trusiee-admmistercd fund, 15 funded by
payments from the employer. tahing account of the recommendaucns of an independent quahfied actuan .

Full actwarial valuations of the principal scheme are carried ot every three years and the scheme actuany
updates these at each balance shees date

Defined benefit schemies are accounted for under 1AS 19 {revised) Employvee Bencfits The retirement benefits
obligation represemis the present value of the obligation 1o prov ide benefits. less the fair value of the schemes' assets.
The financing costs of the schemes are ecopnised m the consolidated mcome statement and actuarial gains and
losses are recopansed w full in the consolidated statement of comprehensive meome Net interest is calculated by
apply ing the discount rate (¢ the net defined pension habihiy
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CLIFFORD CHANCE LLP
Financial Statements for the year ended 31 April 2023

2 Significant accouating policies (continued)

I}

K}

m

—

Annuities

The cost of providing annuities to current and retired pariners is determined annually by an independent actuary and
charged 10 the income statement over the estimated service hives of the partners

Provisions

A provision 15 recognised in the balance sheet when there is a legal or construclive present obligation as a result ol a
past event. 1t is probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be required te settle the obligation and a rehable
estmate can be made of the amount of the obligabon Provisions are determined by discounung, 1f the effect 15
material. the expected future cash flows at a pre-tax rate that reflects current market assessments of the nme value of
money.

Contingent liabilities

Contingent liabilitics inctude possible obligations whose existence will be confirmed by uncertain future events that
are not whally within the control of the entity and obligauons that are not recognised because thetr amount cannel
be measured reliably or because settlement 15 not probable Where contimigent liabilities exist. they are disclosed in
1he notes 10 the financial statements. See note 20 tor further details

Financial instruments

Financial assets and Ninancial liabilities are recogmised i the group s balance skeet when the Group becomes a party
to the contractuai provisions of the istrument

fnvesiments in subsidiaries
Investments in subsidiaries are held at cost less accumulated impairment lasses.

Trade and other recelvables
Trade and other recervables are measured al oost less any mpamwnt. iscuding an expected credit tess

proes Lsion

Cash and cash equivalenis
Cash and casi equinvalents comprise cash in hand or demand deposns and ather shert-tenn highly hgud

uvestments

Accrived fncome
Accrued mcome 15 measwred at the selling value of unbitled hours chargeable o clients less any impament,

mctuding an expected <redit loss provision.

Trade and other payables
Trade and other payables. including borrowings, are measured at fair value on mecpuon then subsequently at
amortised cost

In relation to the impairment of financial assets, [FRS 9 requires an expected credil loss mode! The Group applies
the simplified approach to measure expecled credit losses usmg a hifetme expecied loss allowance for trade
receisables and accrued income. In case of investments (n subsidianies the LLP cames out annual mpairment tests
1o ascertain :f the carmying value of such invesiments are nhpaired These tests comprise a companson between the
carmymg value of such mvestimems and the net assel value of such subsidiaries In some instances. the future
estimated profit or foss are considered or valuatiens of subsidianies are prepared  Valuauons for umpaimment (ests are
based on established market muluples or risk-adjusied futore cash floss over the esumated useful hife of the asset.
where limited. discounted using appropriate interest rales The assumptions relatng to futwre cash flows. esimated
uscful hives and discount rates are based on business forecasts and are thercfore, wherently judgemental Future
events cowdd cause the assumptions used in these impawrment tests 1o chanpe with a consequent adverse effect on the
Tuture results of the subsidiances.
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CLIFFORD CHANCE LLP
Financial Siatements for the year ended 30 Apail 2¢:23

2 Significant accounting policies (continued)
n) Leases

The Group asszsses whether a contract 15, or contains a lease at the inception of the contract A lease conveys the
night to direct the use and obtain subsiantially all of the economnc benefits of an 1dentificd asset for a period of time
i cxchange for consideratron

As a lessee

The Group leases buddings for 1ts office space The leases of office space nypically run for a defined penod, but
may have extension options Conlracts may contath both lease and non-lease componenis For property leases the
Group has efected to separate lease and non fease components and ailocates the consideration in the contract ta the
lease and non-lease companents based on therr relative stand-alone prices Lease lerms are negotiated on an
ndividual basis and contain a wide range of different teems and conditions The lease agreements do not imposc
covenants other than the secunty terests in the leased assets 1hat arc held by the lessor. Leased assets may not be
used as secunty for borrowing purposes.

Leases are recognised as a nght-ofuse assel and a corresponding (iability at the date at which the leased asset is
available for use by the Group Leasc liabiliies nclude the net present value of the following lease payments

- fixed pay ments,

- variable lzase paymient that are based on an inde or a rate immally measured using the dex or rate as at the
commencement date. and

- payments of penalties for wrninaung the lease it the lease wrm reflects the Group eaercising that option

1 ease paymenis 10 be made under reasonably certam extension optons are alse mcluded n the measurement of the
liability The fease payments are discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease [f that rate cannot be readily
deternmned, which is the case lor leases i the Group the lessed's ipcremental borrovang rale ss used. buing the rate
that the individual lessee would have to pay 1o borrow the funds necessary to obtam an asset of 4 simlar value 10
the night-ofuse asset in a sinnlar ccononue environment with simular terms secunity and conditions

To determune the incremental borrosng rate the Grroup
- uses a relevan! corporate hond rae wthm cach speeific region and
makes an adjustment speciiic to the lease torm and the nish m each region relative to the overatl warket

The Group 1s exposed 1o poleatal Jutlure mereases m v anable icase payments hascd on ap mdey or rate. which are
not included m the lease Habibiy untl they take effect When adjustiments o lease payments based on an index or
rate take cffect. the lease Liabiliy is reassessed and adjusted agamst the right-of-use asset The Group has no
variable lease payments for ls property leases other than those hinked o an index or a rate

The night-of-use assel js initially measured at cost, which comprises the imual amount of the lease liabiliy adjusted
for any Jease payments made al or before the commencement date. less any lease incentives recenable, plus any
tial direct costs incurred and an estimate of costs 10 dismantle and remove the underlying asset or to restore the
underly ihg asset or the site on which it 1s Tocated less any lease meenlis s recened

Right-of.usc asseis are gencrally deprecialed over the shorter of the asser's useful life and the lease term on a
straight-hne basis.

The pracuical expedicius for shory term leases were not adopled for the leases within the Group. The Group aiso has
low value leases that are primanly classificd as office equipment and a few motor yvehicle leases  he office
couipment mesthy comprise printers and phatocopiers The Group has net adopted the pracical expedient for short
term or Tow value leases and have meluded all these Ieases on the balance sheet
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CLIFFORD CHANCE LLP
Financial Statements {or the year ended 37 Apnl 2023

2 Significant accounting policies {continued)

n)

o)

Leases (continued)

As 2 lessee (continued)

There are no material termination options included m the property leases across e Group. The Group has included
some material extension options for the Singapore & Australian office leascs as managemenyi 15 reasonably certain
the extension options held by the Group will be exercised Leases due to expire within {2 months of year end were
examined 10 see if there were any extension oplions exercisable by lessee that may potennally be exercised In
congidering all the facts and circumstances the Group determuned that none of these leases expiring in |2 months
should include an extended lease term.

As a lessor
The Group also sub-let some of its office buildings, primarily in the | K and the US The Group determines at each
sub-1case inception whether each lease is a finance lease or an operating lease

To classify each lease, the Group makes an overall assessment of whether the lease transfers substantially all of the
risks and rewards incidental to ownership of the underlymg asset [Fthis 1s the case then the lease is a finance lease
ifnot, then it 15 an operating lease.

When the Group is an intermediate kessor. it accounts for 11s interest in the head lease and the sub-lease separately
It assesses the lease classification of a sub-lease with reference to the right-ofuse asset arising from the head lease.
not with reference to the underlying asset.

Income taxation

Income tax payvable on pantnership profits 1s the personal Liability of individual members 1 most junsdictions
including the UK. [n some locations. income tax payable on pantnership profits 1s the liability of the relevant
partnership. There is a separate tax charge in the income slatement and a separate tax hiability i the balance shect
for such amounts payabic by partinerships sogether with tax payable by the curporate subsidianes

Deferred 1ax 15 the tax expected to he pay able or recoverable on differences between the carm g amounts of assels
and habilies in the financial statements of the Group's corporate subsidianes and the corresponding tax bases used
in the compuation of taxable profit and 15 accounted for using the balance sheet habilty method Deferred tax
tiabiluies are gencraily recogmsed for all 1axable temporany, differences and deferred ax assets are recognisced to the
extent that 1t s probable that tavable profits watl be available against which deductible temporary differences can be
utilised 1n futuee The carnang amount of deferred tax assets 15 reviewed at each balance sheet date and reduced to
the extent that 1t 15 no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow all or part of the asset
to be recovered

Deferved tax is calculated at the tax rates that arc expected to apply 1n the penod when the liability 1s settfed or the
assel 1s reatised based va 1an laws and rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted at the balance sheet
date n the relevant country  Deferred tax assets and liamlities are offset when there 1s a legally enforceable right to
set ofl current 1ax assets apanst current tax habiliies and when they relate to income taxes levied by the same
lavalion authonts and the nention 1s 10 settle the current tax assets and liabiliies on a net basis

Curremt and deferred tax arc recogmised i the income statement. except when they relate 1o nems that are
recogmsed m the statement of comprehensive mcome or directly 1 statement of changes w1 equity 1 which case.
the current and deferred 1ax are also recogmised m the statement of comprehensise income or directly 10 equily
respectively
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Significant accounting policies {continned)

p) Members' capital

q

r

—

-

Non-US members are required to give a minimam of not less than six months notice of reticement. whilst US
members arc not required to give notice  Members' capital which 1s measured at cost 1s repayable within six
months of retirement. Accordingly, members' capital 1s required (o be classified as a habahity, with capual duc to
1§ and retinng partners classified as a cumrent hability, and the remaimng liabihity classified as a non-current
labihty

Critical accounting estimates & judgements and key sources of estimation

The preparation of financial statements 1 conformity with IFRS requires the use of cenain criical accounting
cstimates and pudgements, including judgements regarding 1he applicabion of the accounung policies Estimates
and judgements are conunually evaluated and are based on historical experience and other factors. including
expectatigns of fuiure events, that are believed 1o be reasonable under the circumstances The crinical accounting
csiimates and key sources of estmation applied in these financial statements are se1 out below  Any significant
change in these estiniates could have a materral effect on the Group's financial position and resulls of operations
within the next year in terms of 1AS | 'Presentation of Fiancial Statements’

Actuarial assumprions

The pension habtlites n respeet of the principal defined benefit scheme and the provisions for annuty pay ments
Gy current and retired partners have been independently valued by actuanies based on mformation proviged by
Clifford Chance | P The assumptions are sel out in notes 21 and 22 and have been detennined having taken
advice from the independent actuaries

Leases - discount rate

Gisen the absence of the mnterest rate mphiot m g lease the Group has applied 4 methodology o detertine the
fessee's incremental borrowing rate 7 his rate 15 determined as temp the rate that the mdividual fessee would have
to pay 10 borrow the funds necessary to oblatn an assel of a sumlar v alue to the nght of-use asset i a ssmuar
economic eavironment v ith simiar terms. sceunty snd conditions. An adjustment 1s then made speaific to the risk
factor in cach region

Gaing concern

The appheability of going concern basis 15 reviewed by the management taking into account the contuiued
avallability of sufficient fundmg for 1he operations of the Group The Group’s mam sources of finding are
partiiers” capital, undistributed profits and borrowing facilities The current borowng facilinies are desenibed in
note 19 and the availabiluy of these facilities 15 dependent upon conunued compliance with the applicable
financial covenants Regular financial Torccasts are prepared (o momier the Group’s funding requiremients and
projected compliance with the covenants Consideralion is given to the potential business nishs which could aflect
future compliance and the potential actions which could be taken to mitigate the effect of these nsks The main
financial risks (o which the Group 1s exposed are described in note 26

It is considered that the Group will be able to continue 1o comply with the applicable covenants for a penod of al
feast twwelve months [fom the date of approval of these financial statements. grven the current level of cash at bank
and forecasted trading performance

Accordingly. the gomg concem basis of accounting has been adopled i preparing these financial slatements
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Significant accounting policies (continued)

s} Related party transactions

Within the Group financial statements. balances between Clifford Chance LLP and its subsichary entitics have
been eliminated on consohdation Total transactions with and year end balances held with other related paries are

disclosed in note 25.

Remuneration of the Executive Leadership Group members, who are related parties. is disclosed n note 235

Entities included in the consolidation

Clifford Chance LLP pracuces through overseas branches in Abu Dhabi. Amsierdam, Beyjing. Brussels, Dubar and
Shanghai. As a1 30 April 2023, Chifford Chance LLP alse had the following undenakings. all 100%e controlled. except
as detatled in the section headed "Alliances” below

The principal activity of the enties hsted below :s the provision of legal services wilh the exceplion of those marked
below as follows:

(1) entities which provide senices to other Group cnlities. or
{2) entities which hotd investments in other Group undentahings. or
{3) entities which are dormant

The UK subsidiaries annotated with an '+ from the followng list of subsidiaries are excnipt from the Companies Act
2006 requirements relaling to the audit of therr mdividual accounts by virue of Section 479A of 1he Companies Act
2006 as Clifford Chance | | P has guaranteed the subsidiary companies under Sechon 479C of the Companies Act

2006.

Name af entity Cuountry of Kegistered adidress
Operation
Chifford Chance Australia Level 24 Brockficld Place, 10 Carrington Strect
Sydney NSW 2000 Australia
Chfford Chance Ausiraha Pty Limited (2} Awustralia Level 24 Broekficld Place, 10 Carrington Street
Sydnes NSW 2000 Australia
Clifford Chance Ausiralia Services Pty Austratia Level 24, Brookficld Place. 10 Carringlon Street
L mmnted (1) Svdney NSW 2000 Australia
Clifford Chance Ausiral:a Nominee Piv Ltd Australia Level 24, Brookficld Place. 10 Carrington Street
() Sydney NSW 2000 Australia
Clifford Chance Ltda Brazil Rua Funchal 418 15th Floor, 5P 04551-060
$40 Paulo, Brazl
Clifferd Chance Prague LLP*® Czech Republic 10 Upper Bank Strect. London, EI14 5J1. UK
Clifford Chance Europe LLP France 10 Lipper Bank Street. Londan, E |4 51J, UK.
Clifford Chance SELATA 1) France 1. rue d’Astorg. CS 60038. 73377 Paris
Cedex 08, France
Chiford Chance Services GmbH (1) Genrany Kolner Strafie 3 a 65760 Eschborn Germany
Clifford Chanece Gennany hmghofstrade 14, 60311 Frankfurt am Mam
Steuerbermungsgeselischalt mbll (1} Germmany
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Entilies included in the consolidation - continued

Name of entity Country of
Operation

Chifferd Chance Partnerschaft mit Germany

beschrankier Berufshaftung (2)

Clifford Chance Tech GimbH CGermany

Clifford Chance GmbH Germany

Chfford Chance (2} Hong Kong

Brecon Limuwed (1) Hong Kong

Legibus Secretaries (Hong Kong) Limited  Hong Kong

(1&2)

Chifford Chance Limited {3) Hong Kong

Clifford Chance Business Services Private  india

Limited (1)

Stwudio Legale Associater i Associazione  [laly

con Chifford Chance

Clifford Chance (Tokyo) [ 1 P Japan

Chifford Chance | aw OfTice Japan

Chiftord Chance (Gaikohuho Kyado gy o) Japan

Chiftgrd Chanee

Clifford Chance GP (2)

| unembourg

1 uxembourg

Chfford Chance, Janicka, krzewsk. Poland
Namiothiewicz 1 Wspdlnies sph
Clifford Chance Badea SPRL Romama
Chifford Chance CIS Lmited*¥ Russia
Chifford Chanee Pte L.nmited Singapore
Chiford Chance Internatiopal 11 P* Singaporc ¢
Morocco
Chilford Chance SLP U Spamn
Maleplade AB Sweden
Chffore Chance | Fhatands Limuted (34 Thadand
Judde Holdings Limited (3) Thaland
Chifford Chance Danmismanlih Hhizmetlen Tuthes
Avuhailik Onakhgi
C httord Chance Damismanbh Hzmetlen Turkey

1 imuted Swkets (1)
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Registercd address

Junghofstralie 14, 60311 Frankfurt am Main
Germany

JunghofstraBe 14, 60311 Frankfurt am Main
Germany

Junghofsiralie 14, 60311 Frankfurt am Main
Germany

27th Flaar, Jardine House. Oae Connatught Place,
Hong Kong

2Tth Floor, Jardine House, One Connaught Place,
Hong Kong

27th Floor, Jardine House. One Cennaught Place,
flong Kong

Room A. 30th Floor. Jardine House. One
Connaught Place. Hong Kong

First Floor. Unit No. 3. Ambicnice Corporate Tower
11, Plot No 3, Ambience Island, NH-8, Sec 26,
Gurgaon, Gurgaon. Harvana, (22001

Via Brolenio 16, 20121, Milano, lalia

31 West $2nd Sweet. New York, NY 10019-6131,
USA

Palace Buslding. 3rd floor. -1 Marunouchi 1~
chivttie Chisada-ku, Tohyo 100-0005. Japan
Palace Butlding. 3rd Noor. | 1. Marunouch |+
chome, Chneda-ku. 1okyo 1000003, Japan
WBWGD Charlohe BFP1147.5 1011

1 usembourg. Grand-Duche de Luxembourg
19BIdG D Charlokte, B P LIJ7, (1011
Luxembeurg Grand-Duche de Luxembourg
Norway House. ul [ wowsha 19. 00-660 Warsaw,
Poland

Excelsior Center, 28-30 Academiei Street, Sector 1,
Bucharest, 010016. Romanta

10 Upper Bank Street, London E14 3)J. UK
Manna Bay Financial Centre, 231h Floor. Tower 3.
12 Manna Boulevard. Singapore

10 Upper Bank Steeel, L.ondon, L14 5)). UK

Pasco de la Catellana 110. 78046, Madrid. Spain
CHO TMF Sweden AB, Vasagatan 38, 111 20,
Stockholm, Sweden

Level 1], Mercuny Tover, 540 Pleanchit Road,

L umpuni. Pathumsean, Bangkok 10330, Thmland
Level 11, Mercuny Tosver, 549 Pleonchit Read.
Lumpmi, Patumwan, Bangkol 10330, Thailand
Kanyon Ofis Bmasi kat 10. Buyukdere Cad. No.
(83, istanbul 34394 Turkey

hanson Ofis Bimas Kat 10, Busukdere Cad No
185, Istanbul 34394 Turker
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Entities included in the consolidation - continued

Name of entity Country of Registered address
Operation
Clilford Chance Newcastle Linuted (1)* UK The Lumen St James Boulevard. Newcastle Helix.
Newcastle l'pen Tyne, UK
Clifferd Chance No 2 Limued {2)* UK 10 Upper Bank Street, London, E14 51, 1k
Clifford Chance Gernmany LLP (3)* UK 10 Upper Bank Swreet, London, EL14 511 Uk
(formerly Clifford Chance Deutschland
LLP)
Clifford Chance Nominees No 2 1 swnuted UK 19 L pper Bank Street, London. E14 510, 1 K
(*
Clifford Chance Pension Trustecs Limited UK 10 tipper Bank Strees. London, E14 50), VK
(&)
Clifford Chance Properly Nominees UK 19 L lpper Bank Sireel, London, E14 30 LK
Limited (1)*
Clifford Chance Secretaries Limited (2)* Uk 10 Lpper Bank Street. London, E14 51 LIk
Mithras Limited {2) UK 10 Upper Bank Street. London. E 4 5J1 Uk
Moleglade Limited* UK 10 Upper Bank Sireet, London. E£14 5JJ. UK
Clifford Chance London Livuted (1) UK 10 Upper Bank Street, London. E{4 5)). UK
CC Warldwide Linited India/bouman 10 Upper Bank Street. London. Eid 31, UK
and kenya
Clifford Chance Apphed Solutions | imited Uk 10 Upper Bank Street. London, E14 $1). UK
Clifferd Chance Technology Lmuted* Uk 10 Upper Bank Street, Londen. E14 31), UK
Clifford Chance Holdings LLP (1&2) UK 19 Upper Bank Street, London, 14 1), UK
Clifford Chance Busmness Serviges UK 10 Upper Bank Street. Londen, 14 510, UK
Holdings Linuted (2)*
Clifford Chance UST 1 P U'SA 31 West 52nd Street. New York. NY
10019-6131, USA
Chfford Chance | aw Farm | 3) Saudh Arabia C 'O Abuhimed Alsheikh Alhagbam Law [ 1m

Building 135, The Business Gate king Khaled
[ntermational Airport Road Cordoba Dhstncl
Riyadh, Kimgdom of Saudi Arabia

# The finn ceased operations m Russia from 31 May 2022, after which the provision of legal ser ices lrom our
exishing Moscon ofhiee ceased Fxisung Russian viient work was transferred 10 a new  mdependent faw firm

Allignces

The Group has enlered mic contractual arrangements with the eatities below such as to require shewr resulis to be
censolidated with the financial statemeats of the Group

Name of entity Country of Registercd address
Operation
Cavenagh Law LLP Swgapore Marina Bay Financtial Cenire, 23th Floor,
Tower 3, 12 Manna Bouley ard, Singapore 018982
Cifter Asukatih Ortakligs Turkey kanyen Ofis Binast Kat 16, Buyuhdere Cad No
talso known as Cifici Attornes Pantnership) I[85 Istanbul 34394, Turkey
¢ hfford Chance Sociedade de Consultores  Bracil Rua Funchal 4 {8 15th Floor. $P 04351-060

S3o Pawlo, Braal

With effect from | May 2023 Clifford Chance LI I* and Abuhnned Alsheibh Alhagbam Law Finn (AS&ID have
enlered mto an agreement to form a joint venture m Saudy Arabia. The joint venture will be known as AS&H
Clifford Chance having registered office m Rivadh Clifiord Chance LI P holds 30% of the voting nights mn s
Jowmt sentire
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4. Revenue

The Group denives revenue from the provision of professional services to clients typweally over ume in the folfowing

geographic and client segments

Revenue by geography

U'nited Kingdom
Conmmental Evrope
Asia Paciiic
Americas

Middie East

Revenue by chient segment
Fmancial Investors
Cormporate Lnterprises
Banks

Others

2023 2022
fm im
764 687
634 622
332 344
268 259
64 57
2,062 1.969
2023 2022
£m £m
738 704
736 631
508 531
80 103
2.062 1.969

The Group has recopmsed acerued meome of £376m (2022 £369m) n relatron 1o contracts with custorers. Accrued income

anses when the Group fulfills contraciual performance ohligations ahead of biliing s clienls

The Group also recogmised a loss allow ance for accrued income of £2m (2022 £3m]. also see note 26

5. Staff and related costs

Consolidated LLP
2023 2022 2023 2022
£m fm £m £m
Salaries and other remuneration ol non-members 761 684 71 67
Social secunity cotributions 62 54 ? 6
Pensien coniribulions 23 23 5 8
Annuities credil (nole 22) (1) (&1 (9) N
Otlier staff costs 126 113 56 35
963 369 130 i33
The monthly asverage number of panners and employ ees
during the year was as follows:
Consolidated LLP
2023 2022 2023 2022
Nos Nos. Nos. Nos.
‘Y olal partners 593 563 242 230
Assactates and other fee eamurs 2,481 2.432 296 316
Total lranees 650 636 g5 87
Adnnmstrative and support sialt 3017 3.010 241 234
6.74) 6.66) R74 867

The manthiy as erage number of menthers meluded abone for the Group s 480 (2022- 457)

I he amount of profit for the current year which 13 attributable 1o the member wath the largest catitlement to profit is £4 82m

12022 £4%49m)
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6. Profit for the year

Profit before tax for the year avarlable for profit share among members has been arrived at after charging/(crediting)y

2013 2022
£fm £m
(resiated)
Deprecianion of property. plant and equipment (note 13) 20 20
Depreciation on right-of use assets inote 27) 64 58
{liains ¥losses on foreign exchange® (2 3
Operating lease mcome from sub tenants (note 27) 3) i3:
* See note 28 for details on the restatement
7. Auditors' remuneration 2013 2022
£m Em
The followmg amounts have been charged againsi operating profit
Irees payable to the LLP's auditors for the audn ol the 11 P's financial staiements ] 10
Fees payable to the auditors and thewr associates for other services to the Group
- Fees for the audit of the 1 | P's subsidtary entities pursuant to legislation 05 03
Total audn fees 16 13
Audit-related assurance ser ices 02 01
Taxation compliance services 03 08
Other taxation advisory services * 0l o
Other services and fees payable i respect of associaled pension schemes 0! o1
Total non-audit fees 09 10
Total fees 1o audilors 25 23
* Other taxation advisory services s made up of senvices ietalng to £74.952 (2022 £42.639)
8. Finance income and ¢osts
2023 2022
fm Em
Finance income
Finance lease mcome from sub tenanis (note 27) (2} (3)
Interest income on bank deposits () -
(3) (3)
Finance costs
Pensions {note 21} q 3
I inance charge on lease liabshties (note 27) 14 12
Anuities (note 22) 3 2
Intérest on tax paymenls 1 2
24 2t
tinance costs - nel 21 '8
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9, Members' remuneration charged as an expense

Members' remuneraton charged as an cxpense comprises the remuneration of centain panners who are members of Clifford
Chance LLP but whose remunerahan is nol a share of profiis and not discretionany amounting 10 £19m (2022 £16m), and a

charge of £1m {2022 £2m) for annuues {refer note 22)

10, Income tax expense

Current lax
{1K comoration vax
Overseas 1axes
Pnor ycar adjustments

Deferred tax

In respect of acceleraled capual allow ances. bonus accruals & allowabie losses

carried furward

fncome tax expense

2023 2022
£m £m
4 4

36 21
® 16
31 41

. i

. (i}

3T T dT

In most Yocations. meluding the U, mecome tax pay able un the allocaton of profits to members 15 the personal habilny of the

members and henee 15 not shiown in these Tinancial sbaenents

Reconcitiation of tax charge:

Profit before taxauon®
Amounts subject to personal tax*®
Adjusted Profin before taxation

Tax at { K standard corporate riste 149 49%, (20122 19%20)

Permancnt diflerence between the basis of recagnition ol profits for tax and accountng

{ ax effects of differing o3 crscas tax Tites
Prior y car adjustiment
1otal income tax cxpense

* Sce note 28 for detals on the restatenwnt

Amounts recoghised in the statement of comprebensiyve income

Deferred tax charge m Ihe reporting period and not recogmsed 1n the meome
statement but direetly charged to other comprehensive income

Deferred tay asset
Deferred tax asset movements during he current year were as followns
Althwe beginnmg of the year

Mosvement i the vear
At the end of the year

b2 B X] 2022
£m £m
{resiated)
713 179
(580) (634
193 145
38 28
- (8)
2 4
%) 16
31 40
2023 2022
£m £m
. 51
2023 2022
£m fm
} 51
- (50)

The deferred tay asset 18 recognised w respeet of accelerated caputal allowances. bonus accruals & allowable losses camied
forward In the previous year, the LLE, Chifford Chance London Lmited ("CCLL") and the Trustee ol the Pension Scheme, in
which gertam emplovers of CC11 pamcipated had agreed under a *Flexible Apportienment Arangement’ 1o the transier of
the whale pension habilin of CCHL to the Lt P as on 30 Nosember 2021 As a result the deferved tax asset recogmised m
CCLL wrespect of lemporary differences related to the defined benctit pension scheme was reversed in 1he previous year
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11. Profit attributable 10 the Limited Liability Partnership

The profil for the {inancial year available for profit share ameng members dealt with i the financial statements of the parent

undertaking Chifford Chance LLP. is set oul in note 24

12. Investments - LLP

Cost:

Balance as at | May 2021
Additions*

Balance as at 30 Apnl 2022
Additions

Batance as at 30 Apnil 2023

Impairment:

Balance as at 1 May 2021
Additions

Balance as at 30 April 2022
Additions

Balance as at 30 Apnl 2023

Carrying amouni;
As al 30 April 2022
As al 30 April 2023

The subsidiaries of the § | P as at 30 Apnl 2023 are as follows

Name Direct shares
held (%)

Moaleglade | inmted (14}

{ “afford Chance No 2 Linnted 1

Cuttord Chance @ ondon Limited *

£m
220
225

2235

Registered Address

10 Upper Bank Street [ ondon. | 14 5)) UK
10 Upper Bank Street. [ ondon 1 {4 300 UK
10 Upper Bank Street 1 ondon, & 14 5] UK

* In the previous year. the LLP, Clifford Chance London Limited ("CCLL™) and the Trustec of the Pension Scheme. m which
centam emp.oyees of CCLL panicipated had agreed under a 'Flenible Apportionment Amangement to the transfor of the
whole pension hability of CCLL to the LLP as on 30 November 2021 The outstanding pension abildy on 30 Nmember
2021 was £220m The iransfer was accounted for as a captal contribution by the LLP i CCLL and resulted in an mcrease in
investments by an amount equal to the net pension liabulity at the date ol the transfer

Also refer note 3 for list of entities included in the consohidativn.
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13, Property, plant and equipment and intangible assets - Consolidated

. : Intangible
Property, plant and equipment asiets
L.easehold Office and Furniture
. 1T X Total
improvements equipment and fittings

Cost: fm £m im fm £m
Balance as at 1 May 2021 118 77 23 123 51
Foregn exchange movements 3 I i 5 -
Additions ¢ 10 ! L5 -
Dusposals 9 {5) £2) (16) -
Balance as at 30 Apnil 2022 116 83 28 227 5l
Foreign ¢xchange movements 1 - b 2 .
Addiions 18 8 3 29 -
Drsposals (N N 2) (6} -
Balance as at 3¢ April 2023 128 84 30 242 3t
Accumulated depreciation:
Balance as at 1 May 2021 (68) [(:X]] 20 (15h 131
1 oreign exchange mosements 2) th (h ) -
Depreciation charge for the vear [l % ) (24) -
Disposals [ 3 2 13 -
Balance as a1 30 Apnl 2022 [a)] (68) 2N {162) (3N
T-oreign exchange movements i - - m -
Depreciation charge for the year G2} ] () 20
Disposals 3 7 2 4 -
Balance as at 30 Apnif 2023 (78) (70} (21) (1691 (51}
Carpying amonnt:
As at 30 April 2022 43 15 7 65 -
As at 30 April 2023 30 14 9 73 -

The intangible assets are capnalised saftware development costs and are firlly amortised
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14, Property, plant and cquipment and intangible assets - LLP

i . Intangible
Property, plant and equipment assets
Leasehold Office al;.(:. Furniture
improvements equipment aud fittings Total Software
Cost: fm £m £m £m fm
Balance as at 1 May 2021 1 39 4 54 51
Additions 4 4 - 8 -
Disposals {4) (2} {k (T .
Balance as at 30 Apnl 2022 1 41 ' 3 35 31
Addihions 3 3 - 6 -
Disposals (2) (1) - {3) -
Batance as at 30 Apnl 2023 12 43 3 58 31
Accumulated deprecintion:
Balancc as at 1 May 2021 th (35) W3 43) {51}
Depreciation charge for the year (L) 3 - 4)
Disposals 4 2 - 6 -
Balance as at 30 Apnl 2022 4 (36) 3 (43 51
Depreciation charge for the year ( 3 - ¥
Disposals 2 1 - 3 -
Balance as at 30 April 2023 (3) 38 13 (dd} [&1D)
Carrying amount:
As al 30 Apnl 2022 7 5 - i2 -
Asat 30 Aprd 2023 9 3 - 14 -

I'he mtangible assets are capitalised software development costs and are futly amorused
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15. Trade and ather receivables

Consolidated LLP
2023 2022 2023 2022
fm £m £m £fm
frestated)
Trade receivables 516 452 167 207
Amounts due from subsidian entities - - 353 274
Sundry recervables and prepayments 85 68 40 33
601 520 660 529

Further information regarding credn risk and the aliowance for doubtful debis in reiation to client receivables is given i note
26

There 15 no material difference between the fair value and camying value of trade and other receivables. The amounts for
ntercompany result from fees owed by other offices in respect of client matters which arise when the leading office issucs a fee
note 1o the client and also in respect of mter-office charges for items such as management charges. Alsa the amounts due from
subsidiary entities includes amounts in respect of distnbution and payment of profits by the LLP on behalf of subsidian
entrlies to Pariners of those subsidiary entities as per the partnership agreement, Such balaaces are interest free and repayable
on demrand

6. Amounts due from and duc to members

Amounts due from and due 10 members compnse drawings paid to members during the financial year, which are advance
payments m refation 1© the profit for the financial year avaslable for profit share among members. logether with advance
paynwnts of members’ personal tanes. fess net amounts wathheld from prior y ear profit distributions but not yet paid over to the
tax authoritics in relation to members’ prior year tax habiltics

17. Cash and cash equivalents

Consolidated LLP
2023 2022 2023 2022
£m £m £m £m
Cash at bank and i hand 232 378 96 138
232 378 26 138

The cash and cash equivalents disclosed above and in the statement of cash flows include £6m (LLP: £mil) (2022: Group £4m,
P 1P faal) warth of cash at bank whivh are subject to contractual restiictions and are therefore not available for general wse.

There 15 no matertal difierence berween the tar value and careying value ol cash and cash equivatents.

18. Trade and other payables

Lonsolidaled LLP
2023 2022 2023 2022
£fm £m £m fm
trestated)
Accounts payable 45 39 29 23
Amounts duc 1o subsidiany enlites - - 406 406
Socnal secunty and olher taxes 21 19 1 b
Corporate and income taxes pavable 12 10 2 4
Capitat of non-members 26 28 12 14
Undistributed camings due to non-nweinbers 1 104 35 3!
Other creditors 51 44 19 17
266 244 504 498
Accruals 216 229 64 75
Deferred income 24 19 24 19
506 492 592 592

There 1 no matenal difference between the fair value and cammy mg v alue of trade and other payabies.

The amounts due to subsidian, entities tesult from fees due te other offices i respect of client matiers which anse when the
lcadiag affice hsues o fee note to the client and Hso n respect ol inter-office charges for items such as management charpes
Also the amounts duc 1o subsidiary entities ineludes amounts i respect of distribution and payment of profits by the
substdiary entinies on behalf of the L1 P o Parners of those subsidiary entities as per the partnership agreement Such balances
are mitcrest free and repay able on demand
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19. Borrowings

No borrowings were outstanding at the balance sheet date §2022 £nil). The average cffective interest rate was 3 18%
12022 1 02%)

AL 30 Apnl 2023 available undrawn committed borrowing facilities in both the Group and the LLP amounted to £ [50m (2022
£130m) which expires in April 2025,

20. Provisions and Employee benefit obligations
Consolidated

Employ ee benefit obligations Provisions
Other
Pensions Annuities Property provisions Total
£m £m £m £m £m

note 21} (note 22)
Balance at | May 2021 271 1719 20 10 480
Charge-(credit) duning the ycar 5 (n - 27 3
Amounts pand * utilised / released 22) 120y - (2} (44)
Net gain due (o changes in actuarial (125) A ) i (125)
assumptions
Balancc at 30 April 2022 129 158 20 35 342
Charge/(credit) during the year 4 (4) - 3 3
Amounts pad / utilised / released 124 20y - (19) 164)
Net gamn due 1o changes in actuarial an ) . ) (17)
assumplions _
Balance al 30 April 2¢23 92 133 20 19 264

Provisions  Property

The Group 15 required to restore centam: legsed prenuses o thar original condiien at the end of the respeetinve lease s A
provision has been recogmised for the present valoe of the estimated resioration expenditre

Provisions - Other provisions

Other provisions mncludes provision related 1o those matters for which the tax detenmmatian 1s uncertain but at 1s considered
probable that there wil) be 8 future outflow of funds to a tax authorily The provisions are measured al the best estnnate of the
amount expected o become pay able. The assessmient is based on the ;udgement af tax professionals and in cenain cases based
on speciahst imdependent tax advice Other provisions also includes provision refated to long tenn employee beneflits These
provisions are not expected to be settled in the next financial year

The Group may be mvolved 10 disputes in the ardman course of business. which may give nise to clams by chents or
reguiatory mvestigahions or preceedings The Group defends such claims where appropriate and alse benefits from substanual
professional indemniy inserance Where costs are Likefy to be incurred n defending and concluding such claims. a provision 1§
made based on management's assessment of the specific circumstances n each case and the likely costs to be ancurred by the
Group which 1s recorded under "Other provisions”. No separate disclosure is 12ade of the cost or nature of claims ecvered by
insurance as 1o do so could senoushy prejudice the position of the Group
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20. Provisions and Employee benefit obligations {continued)

LLP
Employee benefit obligations Prosisions
Pensions Annuities Property (-)fher Total
provisions
fm £m m £m fm
(note 21) {note 22)
Balance at | May 2021 - 156 4 5 75
Transferred from Chifford
Chance London Limted* 220 ) ) ) 220
Charge dunng the ycar 2 - L 26 29
Amounts paid / unlised / released (15) (18) - L (34)
Net galn‘due to changes 1n actuanal (78) i ) . (78
assumplions
Balance at 30 Apnl 2022 129 138 15 30 312
Charge during the year 4 (4 - 1 1
Amounts pawd 7 utilised ! released 24 118} - {18) (60}
Net gain due to changes n actuanal an ) ) ) (17
assumptions
Balancc at 30 April 2023 92 116 15 13 236
The above amounts have been disclosed i the halunce sheet as follows
Consolidated LLP
2023 2022 2023 2022
m fm fm im
Employee benefit obligations - current 8 21 15 19
Lmployee benelit obligations - non-current 207 266 193 248
225 287 208 267
Provisions - cucrent - 1 v
Provisions - non-current 19 34 28 44
39 55 |’ 43
264 342 236 312

* in the previous year. the LLP, CCLL and the Trustee of the Pension Scheme, in which certain employees of CCLI
participated had agrecd under a ‘Flexible Apportionment Arrangement' ks the transfer of the whole pension liabdiny of CCLIL 1o
the | LP as on 30 November 2021 The outstanding pension habiiity an 30 November 2021 was £220m. The transfer was
accounted for as a capilal contnibution by the {.LP 1n CCLL and resulied n an increase wm invéstments by an amount equal o
the pension habality at the date of the transter
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21. Defined benefit pension scheme
Chifford Chance Pension Trustees ! imuted 15 the trustee of a defined benefit scheme :n which certain employees of Clifford
Chance L.onden | imited participated ("the Scheme"t The Scheme was closed to future accrual with effect from 30 Apnil 2011

The assets of the Scheme are held separately from those of the Group

Payments into the Scheme are assessed in accordance with the advice cf an independent qualified actuary with the funding rate
witended 10 enable the Scheme to be fully fonded over time

A full tnenmal actuanal valwauon of the Scheme has been carmied out as at 30 Apnil 2022 but has not yet been concluded. and
updated as at 377 April 2023 by a quahficd independent actuary Details of such updated valuation are as under

The key accounting assumptions used are sel out below

2023 2022
Discount rate 4 8% 3 1%
Future pension increases - pensions accrued privr to 30 Apnil 2003 3 0% 3 2%
Fulure pension increases - pensions accrued after 39 Apnil 2075 20% 2 3%
Price inilation 3 2% 3 3%

Mortality assumpticns have been based on 53 SAPS Light 1ables with CMI 2021 improvements (2022 53 SAPS Light tables
CMI 2021 ymprovementsi. projected according to gach member's yvear of birth The assumptions for both years mclude an
allowance for increased longevity. assuning a fong-term rate of improvenent of | 0% per anaum

The assumed life expectaticns on retirement at age 65 are

2023 2022
Retiring lodav
Males 88t 883
Femalces 826 B2 8
Retirmg in 20y cars,
Males B9 1 893
I cmales 908 910
The amount recopnised m the consohdated meome statement was as fliows
2023 2022
£m £
Inierest charge :net) under nct finance custs (note §) 4 3
The amonnt recogmised in the consahdated other comprehiensise nconie was as follows
2023 2022
im fm
Remeasurenient gamn from changes in financial assumptions 1233) (154
Remeasurement loss from changes in experience 13 6
Remeasurement (gain Wloss from changes in demographic assumptions (4 12
Remeasurement 10ss on the scheme assets 207 11
Gain recogmsed 1y the consehdated stalement of comprehensine income (17) (125)
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21. Defined benefit pension scheme (continued)

The liability included in the consolidated balance sheet was as follows:

Consalidated LLP
2023 2022 2023 2022
£m £m Em £m
Present value of defined benefit obligation 534 743 534 T43
Fasr value of plan assels (442) {614) 1442) (614)
Present valye of net obligation (note 20) 92 129 92 129
Movements in the present value of defined benefit obligations in the
year nere as follows:
Consglidated LLP
2023 2022 2023 2022
£m £m £m £fm
Althe beginning of the year 743 869 743 -
Transferred from Clifford Chance London Limited® - - 971
Interest on oblhgations 23 17 23 7
Remeasurement gam from changes in financial 233) (154) (233) 241)
assumplions
Remeasurement loss/(gain} from changes in expenence 13 6 13 (2)
Remeasurement (gamn)loss (rom changes in 4 12 0 12
demographic assumptions
Aenefits paid (8) N {8) 4)
Althe end of the year 534 743 334 743
Movements in the fair value of Scheme assets were as follows:
Caonsolidated LL{
2023 2022 2023 2022
£m im £m £
Al the beginning of the vear 614 98 614 -
Transferred from Chifford Chanee 1 ondon | imuted® - - - 75l
interest mcome on Scheme assets 19 12 19 5
Remeasurement loss on the schenw assets 207 (I (207} {153)
Comnibutions made pA] 22 24 15
Benefits paid (8) (&2} 18) (4
At the end of the vear 442 614 442 614
The assets held by the Scheme were as {ollows 2023 % of 2022 % of
value total value total
£m value fm value
L_quities and other growth asscts PEY. 52% 358 8%
Liability driven invesiment 186 42% 211 34%,
Bonds - 0% 29 3%
Other assets 24 6% 16 3%
442 100% 614 100%0

* In the previous year. the LI CCIL and the Trustee of the Pension Scheme, m which cetain employees of CCLI
paruicipated had agreed under a 'Flexible Apportionment Arrangement’ 1o the transfer of the whole pension hability of CCLL to
the 11 P as on 30 November 2021, The ouwtstanding pension liability on 30 November 2021 was £220m The wunsfer was
accounted for as a capital contnbution by the LUP i CCLI and resulted in an increase in ivestments by an amount cquai to the

pension hability at the date of the transfer

Based on the resalts of the most recentls conipicted tricnmeal actuacial xaluation as at 30 April 2019, the employer has agreed
that it wikl am to elmmate the Schome s deficit (as assessed on the ongoing funding basis) by 31 May 2028 The contnbutions
paid by the employer for the penod from | May 2022 to 30 Apnl 2023 were £24m Funding {evels are montored on an annwual
basts and the aext ricanial valuation as at 30 Aped 2022 s currenth, underuay  Lypected amploy er eontabulions to the Scheme
for the vear ending 30 Apnl 2024 are around £17m “here are no member coptributions expected for the vear to 30 April 2024

The weigned average duratien of the defined benefit obligauon 1s around 18 years
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21, Defined benefit pension scheme (cantinued)

Sensitivities

The key assumptions used for the actuanal saluanon: are the discount rate. price mflation and monabty  (F different
assumptions were used this could have a matenial effect on the results discfosed  The sensitivaty of the results 1o these
assumptions is as follows

Consolidated LLP

2023 2022 2023 2022
Discatnt rare less 0.23% per annim im fm £m fm
Present value of defined benefil obligation 559 184 559 784
Fair value of assets (442} 614y {442) (614)
Revised net pension liability 117 170 17 170
Revised total charge to the income statement 5 5 5 5
RP{ inflation plus 0.25% per annumt £m fm f£m fm
Present value of defined benefit obhigation 554 778 554 778
Fair value of assets (442) (614} (442 {614)
Revised net pension {iability 112 | 64 i12 164
Revised total charge to the income statement 5 5 5 3
Vortalie assumption with | 25% per
arun fong terat rate of improvement £m £m £m £m
Present value of defined benefit 538 750 $38 750
Far value of asscis 4421 614 (442 (614)
Revised net pension liability 20 136 96 136
Revised total charge 1o the income statement ] 4 4 1

The seusitivity information shown above 15 approsimate and has beun detenmimed taking mto account the durahion of the
ligbilitics and the overall profile ofthe plan membership

Risks

The Group is exposed 1o a number of risks through the Scheme of which the most sigmificant are detailed below

Asset volatiity

The liabilities are calculated using a discount rate set with reference to corparate bond yields. 1f assets underperform this
yield. this will create a deficit The Scheme holds a sigmficant proportion of growth assets (including equities. dwversi fied
growth funds and property) which are espected 1o outperterm corporate bonds i the long-term while resulting
volatitity and risk in the short-term. The atlocation 1o grawtk assets 15 momtared such that 11 15 consistent with the
Scheme's long term objectives

Changes in bund yrelds

A decrease in corporate bond vields witl increase the Schemc's labilires although tus wall be partially offset by an
mcrease in the value of the Scheme < bond hotdings
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21. Defined benefit pension scheme {continued)
Inflation risk
The majonity of the Scheme's benefit obligations are linked 10 inflanon and highet inflation will {ead to higher habilies
(although. i atost cases, caps on the level of snflationany mcreases are 1n place (o protect agamst extreme iflation) A
significant proportion of the Scheme’s asscts are invested i a Trability driven investment porifolio which is designed to maich
the liabihves of'the Scheme and provide proiection against mcreases in inflation

Life expeciancy

The magorny of the Scheme’s obligations arc 1o provide benefits for the hfe of the member, 50 increases in the hfe expectancy
will result in an increase in the habslities

In addition to the UK scheme, the Firm operates some smaller defined benefit schemes in other countries The total pension
cost for the year and the aggreparz asscts and habihlies of these schemes were not material

22. Annuity obligations to current and former partners

An independent qualified actuary has asscssed the cost of annuity vhliganons The economic assunpiions used by the actuan
m assessing lhe cost of annuily obligations 1 both the Consohdated and [ P financial statements are as follows

2023 2022

o/ﬂ n"ﬂ

Discount rate 51 30
Rate of pnice inflation 34 4.8

The cost of annuitics which are dependent upon the Tuture profitability of the Frinm has been estimated based upon current and
projected levels of profitabitity and having regard 1o a cap applwable 1 such anmuty pavments

Amounts recognised i the consolidated mcome statement were as follows 2023 2022
£m Em
Movements w provision arising from
Cunrent sers 1ce cost 3 E]
Other actuarial pains {12) (6)
Anteunt credded o the consolidated income statement® 9N (3)
Interest costs associaled with obhigations shown under net finance ¢osts {note 8) 3 2
Total credit to the consohidated income statement (note 20) (d) Wy

* Of thas amount, a charge of £1m (2022 £2m) has been mcluded within members' remuneranion charged as an expensc. and 2
credit of £10m (20221 £5m) in relation o pantaers wwhe were not members and former pariners has been ncluded in staff and
related costs
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22, Annuity obligations to current and former partners (continued)

Mavements in the net habiliy recognised in the consoidated balance sheel were as follows

Consolidated LLP
2023 2022 2023 2022
fm £m £m £m
Provision at the beginning of the year 158 179 138 156
Credit 10 Lthe income statement 14} 1)) (4) -
Annuities pad (21) (20} (18) {18}
Provision at the end of the year (note 20h 133 158 116 138

The basis of calculanon of the annuities proviston in the balance sheel of Clilford Chance LLP is the same as sct out above m
relation to the conselidated batance sheet. but takes intw account only 1hose pariners whose annuity enuitlements are a direct
obligation cf Chfford Chance 1 1 P Annuny enutlements of other partners are a contingent obligation of Clifford Chance LLP.

Sensitivities

The key assumption used for the actvarial valuation 15 the discount rate The impact of a ¢ [0 decrease to the discount rate
would be to increase the liability by approximately £1m (2022 £1m)

23. Members' capital
Consolidated and LLP

2023 2022

£Em £m

Total members' capital al the beginning of the vear 142 157
Capital contributed during the year - -
Capital repaid dunng the year {28} (5
Total members’ capital at the end ol'the vear 114 142

Non-US members are required 10 give a minnnum ol not less than six months natice of renrement. whilst US members are not
required to give notice Members' capital which 15 imeasured at cost 15 repayable within six months of reurement. Members'
capital 15 cequired (o be classthied as a habihity . with caputal due to 1S and retirmg pariners ¢lassified as a cwrent liahalily . and
the remainmg hability classified as a non-currenl habihity
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24. Seatemens of movements in net assets/(liabilities) of members excluding members” interests classified as labilities

A summan of movements in nel assets 7 (lrabilitiesy aunbuiable to members excluding members' interests classified as
habilites since the last balance sheet date is as follows.

Consolidated LLP
2023 2022 2023 2022
£m £m fm £m
frestared) frestared)
Net assets / (liabilitics) attrsbutable 10 members excluding
members’ interests classified as liabiinies at the beginnmg of 541 in 112 (21}
the ycar
Profu for the year 742 739 648 kYxi
|:OI‘CIgn exchange differences ansing on translanon of 34 49 13 17
foreign operations
Actuanial gain on defined benefit pension scheme 17 125 17 78
Ieferved 1ax on defincd henefit pension scheme - (51) - -
Decrease n provisions aunbutable 1o members (o {9 {14}y {9
Capual repayments (net) 128) (15 (28) (15
Profst distributions and related as (730) (669) (470) 315
Net assets ¢ (habibities) alinbutable to members escluding
members’ mterests classified as habluwies at the end of the 359 341 278 112

year

25, Related party transactions

Within the Group tinancral statements. balances between Clifford Chance [1LP and 1S subsidany entities have been
chiminated on consahdation

During the year. Chiflord Chanee | L P provided management and legal seraces (o its subsidiary entities tosaling £177m
(2022 £130m) Management and legal services were purchased trem other Group members totaling £478m (2022: £408m).
Profit dhstribution pad by the 11 P on behalf of subsidiary entitres 1otatmg net £10m (2022 net £62m). The LLP has
received dividend inconw of £458m (2022 £mily dunng the vear. The balances outstanding between Cliflord Chance LLP
and its subsidiary entties 4t the end of the financral year are shown i notes 15 and 13

The key management persoanel comprise the Exceutive Leadership Group (FLG)  Che total remuneration of the 16 ELG
menmbers (2022 14 LU G members) in respect of the financial ycar amounted (6 £38m (2022 £34im), The total remuneration
w respect of the financial ycar for the relative of an ELG member. who 15 an emplovee. amounted to £1m (2022 £1m).
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26. Financial assets and liabilities

The following mformation 1s provided in accordance with the requirements of IFRS 7 “Financial Instruments: Disclosures”

Categories of finaucial assets and liabilities

The tollowing table cateporises the carrying value of the finuncial assets and liabidities at the balance sheet date In each case,
the faer v alue 15 not matenally different to the carrying value.

Consolidated LLP

Financial assets 2023 2022 2023 2022

£m Em £m £fm

frestatec,
Accrued mcome 376 369 162 163
Trade receivables 516 452 267 217
Amounts due from subsichary entities - - 353 274
Finance lease recervables 94 122 13 108
Amounts due from members 87 Bl - -
Cash at bank and in hand 232 378 96 138
1,305 1.402 964 200
Financial liabilities
Trade and other curtent pay ables excluding accruals and
deferred mcome 266 244 o8 92
Amounts due to subsidian entilics - - 406 406
1 case liabilities 636 333 266 304
Amounts due to members - - 35 36
Members' capital 14 142 114 142
Annuities 133 158 1] 138
Acuruals 216 229 64 T3
1,165 1328 1.099 1,193

Risks arising from financinl assets and fiabifities

The following summarises the principal risks associated with the group's financial assets and habibitws and how those nishs are
managed.

Liguiciuy and capital risk

The business is predominantly financed by partners' <apital and undistributed earnings with a RCF available  The capnal
structure is reviewed regularly to ensure that it 15 adequate 1o fund the corrent and projected needs of the busmess The
adequacy of borrowing facilitics is regularly reviewed in light of projections of fiture cash flows The Group has comfortably
complied with the banking covenants sel under the borrowing facilities

The Group continues to focus on working capital management. in particular implementing unprovements (0 manage WIP and
debtor days. As at 30 April 2023 there are 1otal undrawn committed borrowing facilities of £150m n both the Group and the
LLP. The Group also has a substantial cash a1 bank balance of £232m (2022: £378m).

Crrrency risk

The reporting currency 1s Sterling but the Group's business is imtemational. Within each office. revenues and costs are
predeminanthy in the same currency. The consohidated balance sheel exposures 1o currencies other than Sterlmg (principally 1S
Dollars and Luros) are regularly menitored and are considered (0 be naturally hedged.

Credit risk

The treasury policy requires that surplus funds ke deposited only with approved counterpartics and within counterparty limits
An assessment is made of the credit nsk associated with clients by reviewing mdependent raimgs and by mennonng the level
of unpaid fees.
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26, Financial asseis and liabilities (continued)

The Group has two types of financial asset that are subject to the expected credit loss madel
- Trade recervables
Accrued income

While cash at bank and in hand and amount due from members are also subject to the impairment requirements of IFRS 9, the
identificd impairment loss was not material

The Group applies the IFRS 9 simphified approach 1o measure expecied credit losses which uses a lifetime expected Joss
allowance for ali trade receivables and accrued income, and therefore does not track changes in credit nsk. With respect to
amounts due from group undertakings, 2 general approach under [FRS 9 15 applied under which the loss allowance is
measured at an amount equal to the hfeume expecied credit losses if the credit risk on that financial instrument has mcreased
sigmficantly since innia) recognition However. 1f, at the reporting date, the credit nisk on the amounts due from group
undenakings have not increased significantly since initial recognition. an entity shall measure the loss allowance at an amount
equal to 12-month expected credit kosses

To measure the expected credit losses, trade recevables and accrued income have been grouped based on shared credit nisk
charactenstics and the days past due Assessing the credit nisk on a client by client basis would mvolve significant cost and
effon As such. credit nisk is considerud on an affice by office basis. as cach office can be considered to reflect a particular
level of credn nsk

Trade recorvables and accrued mponse are wnitien oft when there is no probabitity of recovery Indicators would include
failure o make any contractual payments. entenng hguidation procedures or clear signs of financial difficultics

The accrued income amounts relate to untilled work i progress L nder the ECL provision matnix methodoelogy , the “less than
30 days’ loss ratio (Group 0 5% (2027 G8%) 1 1P @ 1% (2022 € &%)} calculated in respect of current trade receivables. is
apphied 10 the whole of the WIP balance after speaific pronisions on the basis that all of thesc amounts are unbilled and
therefore fully current

The Group conswders the ageng profile of billings and recenvahles over a three-ycar periad. being that penod over which imere
than 99°, of mivoices are collected 1he expected loss rales are based on the weighted average rates of payvment profiles over
the bils 1issued during the financyal y cars ended 30 Apnl 2019 and 2020, adyusted by country specific credu default swap rates
to reflect current and forn ard-loaking infanmation on macroccononic factors affecting the abihity of the customess to settle the
receinables
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26. Financial assets and liabilities {continued)

Tke loss allowance as at 30 April 2023 and 30 April 2022 for debters due s set cut below The loss rate for 30 days has been
wholly applied to the acerued income balance.

Consclidated

Ageing Gross (rade receivables due Loss rates Loss allowance
2023 2022 2023 2022 2023 2022
£m £m %o % £m £m
31 days kiny 265 07 08 (2) (2)
fi) days 79 71 I3 14 tn N
90 days 55 39 36 51 (2} )
180 days 52 54 77 74 4 ()
1 vear n 31 243 194 (N 1G]]
3 yvears 37 34 03 882 {26) (30)
Over 3 years 17 17 1001 824 (In (14)
§77 51 (61) (59)

Ac¢crued income Loss rates Luss allowance
2023 2022 2013 2022 2023 2022
£m £m % Yo £m £m
Current 378 372 0s 08 (2) (3

LLP

Ageing Graoss tradc receivables due Loss rates Loss allowance
2023 2022 2023 2022 2023 2022
£m £m %o % £m £m
3 dasvs 164 35 06 07 1] th
60 days 44 34 - - - -
90 days 24 17 - 39 - tn
180 days 19 20 53 30 h (h
| year 16 12 I88 167 3N (23
3 years 14 16 64 3 938 (9) s
Over 3 ycars 3 7 100 371 (8) {4}
239 241 (22) (24)

Accrued income L.oss rates Loss allowance
2023 2022 2023 2022 2023 2022
£m £m %o % £m £m
Current 162 164 01 06 {13} on
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26. Financial assets and liabilities (continued)
Accrued income

The table below analy ses accrued income al the balance sheet dale by geographic region

Consolidated LLP
2023 2022 2023 2022
£m £m £m £m
Americas 58 56 B .
Asta Pacific T4 76 2i 25
Centinental Evrope 121 115 19 18
Middle Fast 8 14] g 1))
United Kingdom 115 112 114 110
Total 376 369 162 163

Trade receivabies

The table below analy ses lrade recervables al the balance sheet date by geographic region

Consolidated L1P
2023 2022 2023 2022
£m £m fin £m
AmMETICas 56 50 - -
Aswa Pacific G6R 73 4 4
Continemtal | uropce 158 140 3l 24
Middte Last 26 13 25 18
United Kingdom 208 171 207 171
Total 516 452 267 217
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26. Financial assets and liabilities (continued)

Movements in the allowance for doubtful debis were as follows.

Consolidated LLP
2023 2022 2023 2022
fm £m im £m
Balance at the heginning of the year (39) (35) (24) (25)
Incrense n provision (25) (28) {6) ]
Reversal of provision 10 10 ] 6
Amounts utidised during the year 14 17 4 5
Foreign exchange movements (1) {3} (1) (1)
Balance at the end of the year (61) (59} {22) (24)

Trade receivables not yet paid are ceviewed regularly and provisions are estabhshed on a specific basis if coilection of the
amount due 15 in doubt. Amounts are wrillen ofT agawnst the provision once it becomes clear that no further recoven 1s likely
to accur, at which point enforcement activity will cease

Net impairment losses on financial assets recogrused 1 consolidated income statement were as follows

Consolidated
2023 2022
£m Em
Nel immpaimment lesses - movement in foss allowance for trade receivables (13 HES
Net impairment losses - movemont in loss allowance for accrued income { (2}
{14) {20}

Currency profile of financial assets and fiabilities

The currency profile aff the (roup's financial assels and liabilities at the balance sheet date was as follows

Consolidated LLP

2023 2012 2023 2022

(restated)

Financial assets £m £m £m fm
GBpP 362 578 466 458
usD 143 215 17 28
EUR 312 309 121 138
Other 286 300 260 276
1.305 1.402 964 900

Financial liabilities

GBP 132 800 656 886
usD 242 134 30 15
EUR 240 261 101 95
Other 151 133 292 197
1.363 1.328 1,099 1.193
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26. Financial assets and liabilities {continued)
Maturity profile of financial liabilities

The following tables show the matursty profile of the Group's financial liabilities at the balance sheet date

Counsolidated
Mere than
2013 0-1 year 1-5 years 5 years Others Total
fm £m fm £m £m
Trade and other current
payables excluding accruals
and deferred income 266 . - 266
Members” caprtal = 8 - - 106 1i4
Annuities 18 57 58 - 133
Accruals 216 . - - 216
508 57 58 106 #
LLP
More than
2023 0-1 year 1-5 years 5 years Others Teta!
tm fm fm im fm
Trade and other current
payables excluding accruals
and deferred income 98 - - - 98
Ameuts duce 1o subsidiary 106 i i ) 406
enlies
Members' capatal * 8 - - 106 114
Amounts due to members 35 - - - 33
Annuinies 15 49 52 - 16
Accruals 64 - - - 64
6206 49 52 106 831 #

*As per the pannership agreement members' capilal 1s repayable within 18 months of a member retinng from the
partnership. and accordingly. the maturits of this amauni 15 dependent upon when a pariner retires. amount under “0-1
vear” represents capual repas able of such retwed pariners The remaumng portion of members’ capital classificd as
Others 15 dependent on the dates of raember retirements which 1s unknown beyond 12 months

# The maturity prefile of lease habihities of 30 April 2023 is included n Note 27 Group £636m (undiscounted £778m}.
LI P £266m (undiscounted £28%m)

Page 59



CLIFFORD CHANCE LLFP
Financial Statements for the year ended 30 April 20623

26. Financial assets and liabilities (continued)
Maturity profile of financial liabilities

The following tables show the maturity profile of the Group's financial Labilities at the balance sheet date

Consolidated
More than
2022 0-1 year 1-5 years S years Others Total
£m fm Em fm fm
Trade and other current
payables excluding accruals
and deferred income 244 - - . 244
Members’ capital * 9 : - 133 142
Anouities 21 59 78 - 158
Accruals 229 - - - 229
503 59 78 133 7713 #
LLP
More than
2022 Q-1 year 1-8 vears & vears Others Total
tm £m fm £m £fm

Trade and other cumrent

payables excludmg accruals
and deferred income 92 . - 92
Amounts due to subsidiany

enniues (resiated) 136 ‘ ) - 406
Members’ capnal * 4 - 133 142
Amounity due o members 3¢ - - - 36
Annuities 19 33 66 - 138
Accruals 75 - - . 7%
637 33 66 133 B2O #

*As per the pannership agreement. members' capital is repayable within sis months of a member retining from the
partnershuip. and accordangly . the maturiy of this amount is dependent upon when a pariner retires. amount wnder "0-1
year” represents capital repayable of such retired partners. The remaining portion of members' capital classified as
Others 1s dependent on the dates of member retirements which is unknown bevond 12 months.

# The matunity profile of lease labiliies of 30 April 2022 is included in Note 27 Group £355m (undiscounted £601m).
L1.P £304m (undiscounted £323m)
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26. Financial assets and liabilities (continued)

Sensitivity 1o market risks

I'oreign currency rish arises on financial instruments that are denominated in a currency other than the functional cummency in
which they are measured. includimg foreign currency denominated intercompany receivables and payables which. although
they climinae in the Group's financial siatements, the effect on the result of their revaluation under 1AS 21, is not fully
elminated

Lhe most significant foreign currencies (o the Group are US Dollars and the Euro. The sensitivity of the Group's mcome
stalement (o changes in these exchange rates anses from US Dollar and Euro denominated financial instruments The Group

dous not engage m cash flow hedging activities.

The exchange rates used in the preparation of these financal statemenits were as follows:

2023 2022
Average Closing Average Closing
rate rate rate rate
United States DoMlary £ b21 |26 1.35 1.26
furos / £ 116 114 118 il19

The following table details the Group's sensitivily to a 10% mcrease or decrease in the strength of Sterling 1o the US Dollar
and to the Lure 10% 15 the sensitinity rate used when reportmg foraign currency risk intemnally o key mianagement personne]
and represents management's assessment ot the reasonably possible change in foragn exchange rawes

A nepative number below ndicates a decrease in profit and other ¢quiny where Sterling strengthens 10% against the refevant
currency For a 10% weakeming of Swerling aganst the relesant curreney. there would be a comparable impact on the profit

and other equity . and the balances below would be positive

Consolidated

Impact on other

Impact on post-1ax profif
P l pre components of equily

2023 2022 2023 2022

{restated} (resiated)

fm £m fm £m

Sterding 10%0 stronger agamst US Dollar 9 (7 . .

Sterling 10% stronger against Eure (N (4) - .
LLP

Impact on other

lmpact on -{ax fit
pact on post-tax profi compaonents of equity

2023 2022 2023 2022

fm £m £m fm

resiated) frestqted;

Sterhng 10°6 stronger against U% Dollar (6) 1) - -
Sterling 10% stronger agamst Euru ) 4 : .

[he Group's net mierest cost on external borrowings s Enid and accordingly the sensitiaty of the group's profits and financia
assets and habilities to changes i mlerest rates 1s msignificant
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27_ Leases

(a) As a lessee:

This note provides information for leases where the Group 1s a lessee For leases where the Group is a lessor see note 27 (b).

(i} Amounis recognised in the balance sheet

The balance sheet shows the follosving amounts relating (o leases:

Consolidated LLP

2023 2022 2023 2022
Right-of-use asscts £m fm £m £m
Property 450 326 122 125
Other 3 3 - -

453 329 122 125
The following are the changes in the camying value of night-of-use assets for the year

Consolidated LLP
Property Other Total Property

Cast: im fm £m £m
Balance as at | May 202 | 412 4 417 141
Additions 17 1 78 28
Temiinations (10} ) (12) )
Translation difference . 8 3 2
Balance as at 30 April 2022 437 4 491 165
Additions 183 [ 184 19
Terminalions () (1) un (6)
Translation cifference 7 - 7 i
Balance as at 30 Aprii 2023 667 4 671 179
Accunuitated Depreciation:
Balance as at | May 2021 (0 (2} (106} 21
Depreciation 57 h (58) (20
Terminations 5 2 7 2
Translation difference (5) - i3) (h
Balance as at 30 Apnl 2022 (161 (N (162) [E0)]
Depreciation (63) (1 {64) 20y
Terminations 8 i 9 4
Transtation difference t - ik -
Balance as at 30 Apnl 2023 (217) (1} (218) (57}
Carrying amount:
As al 30 April 2022 326 3 329 125
As at 30 April 2023 450 3 451 122
The Group leases many assets which are primanly buildings for its office space worldwide

Consolidated LLP

2023 2022 2023 2022
Leasc liabilities £m £ £fm Im
Current 91 94 46 43
Non-current 543 461 220 259

636 535 266 = 304 =

*this lease liability balance mcludes £219m (2022 £265m; par able to an miermediate lessor (related pany )

As at 34 April 2023 three lease centracts relating te London Disseldorl and Brussels oflices were commitied and not
commenced amounting 10 £336m As at 30 April 2022 an § ycar lease conlract which related to the Sydney office was

comnutied but not commenced amounting to £26m.
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27. Leases (continued)
{a) As a lessee (continued):
(i) Amounts recognised in the balance sheet (continued)

The followng 1s the movement in lsasc liabilities duning the year

Consolidated LLP
Property Other Total Total
f£m Em fm £m
Balance as at | May 2021 558 4 362 320
Addiions 9 1 30 29
Termmunations (5) - (3) 3
Finance cost accrucd duning the year 12 - 12 6
Payment of lease hiabilities (59 2) (oh (49)
Translation difference 7 - 7 |
Balarice as at 30 April 2022 552 3 3353 304
Additions 179 1 180 15
Terminations 2) - (2} 2)
I nance cost accrued during the year 4 - 19 7
Pay mient of lease habiles {116} 1) (117 (5%
Translation dificrence [ - 6 1
Ralance as al 30 Apnl 2023 633 3 636 266
Total undiscounted lease liabilitics as at 30 A pril Consolidated LLP
2023 2022 2023 2022
£m fm fm fm
Maturity analysis - contractual undiscounfed cash flows
Less than one year 11l 106 51 51
One to two years [Ris) n? Al 3
Two to three years 97 88 51
Three to four years 8y 18 s 50
Four to five years 84 69 52 30
More than five vears 263 153 13 70
178 601 289 323
{H} \mounts recogrised in the income statement
The mcome statement shows the folfors mg amounts relating to leases
Consolidated
2023 2012
fm m
Depreciation charge of right-of-use assets
Property 63 57
Other 1 i
6d 58
Interest on lease habihnses Oncluded m linance cost) 141 12
ficome trom sub-leasing right-cliuse assets - operating keascs 3} (31
Incame from sub-leasing nght-of-use assets - finance leases (2) &)
Amounts recognised in the statement of cash flons
Net cash outllow for leases __@h {73)
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27. Leases {continued)

(a) As a lessee (continued):

(iii) Extension and terminaticn options

There are no matenal termination optivns included in the property leases across the Group The Group has tncluded some
matenial extension options for the Singapore & Australian ofTice leases as management (s reasonably certain the extension
options, held by the Group will be exercised. Leases due to expire within 12 menths of year end were examuned to see 1

there were any exervisable by lessee that may potentially be estended In considermg all the facts and circumistances the
Group determined that none of these feases expiring iz 12 months should include an extended lease term

(iv) Liquidity

The Group dnes not face a sigmificant liquidity nisk with regard to 1ts lease hiabifities as the current assets are sufficient 1o
meet the obhigabans relaied to lease habilities as and when they fall due for more details on the iquidiy nisk see note 26

(b) As & lessor:

L.ease income from lease contracts in which the Group acts as a lessor is as below

Consolidated
2023 2022
£fm £m
Finance Income
Finance ieeeme on the nel wvestment i the lease 2 3
Operating lease
| ease necmne 3 0
Ihe following 15 the moyement in finance Iease recen ables for the year
Consolidated LLEF
£m Em
Balance as at 1 May 2021 143 124
Interest income accrued during the year 3 2
1 case receipts (26) (18
Foreign exchange reserve 2 -
Balance as of 30 Apnl 2022 122 108
Interest mncome accrued during the year 2 2
I ease receipts (26) (20)
Terminations (4) {4)
Balance as ot 36 April 7923 94 86
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27. Leases (continued)

(b} As 3 lessor (continued):

Consolidated LLP

2023 2023

Lease receivables £m £m
Current 24 17
MNon-cusrent 70 69
94 86

Consolidated LLP

2022 2022

Least receivables £m £m

Curment 24 t7
Non-cutrent 98 91

122 108

Onperating leases

The followmy table scts out the maturity analysis ol the lease payments for the sub leases classified as operating leases.
showing the undiscounted fease pay ments 1o be recenved afler the reporting date

Consolidated LLP

2023 2023

£m fm

1 essthan 1 ycar 2 2

One 10 two vears - -
Two lothres years
Three to four years B .
Funr 1o five years
Mare than 5 yecars . .

Tolal undisconnted lease pay ment : 1
Consolidated LLP
2022 2022
fm fm
Less than | year 3 2
One 1 two years 2 2
Twoto three years B .
Three to four years .
Four 10 five years R
More than 3 years .
R E3

Total undiscounted fease payment
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Fmancial Statements for the year ended 30 Aprit 2023

27. Leases {continued)
(b) As a lessor (continued):
Finance leases

The following table sets out the maturity analysis of the lease payments for the sub leases classified as finance leases,
showing the undiscounted lease payments to be received after the reporting date

Consolidated LLP

2023 2023

£m £m

Less than | vear 25 18
One to two years 3] 18
Two to three years 18 18
Three to four years 18 18
Four 1o five years 19 18
Mcre than § years - -
Total undiscounted lease payments receivable 98 920

1.nearned finance income () {4)
Total lease receivables 94 86

Consolidated LLP

2022 2022

£m fm
L.css than { vear 26 19
{Ine to 1wo vears 23 18
i wo to three years 19 19
Three to lour years 19 19
Four to five years 19 19
More than 5 years 21 20
Total undiscounted lease payments receivable i 129 14
Unecamed finance imncome ()] (6}
Total lease receivables ) 122 188
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28. Reststement of Consplidated and Limited Liability Parinership Financial Statements

The CCLLP Partnership Agreemant sets out the basis of determning the profits available for alfocating profits to Partaers.
Distributions of these profits to members are on a discretionary basis and are subject to approval by the Execulive Leadership
Group each vear Prior 10 the year ended 30 Apnil 2022, any profits carmed at a subsidiany which were then distributed to
members were recorded by CCLLP in an mira-group receivable account, with 2 comesponding entry within reserves of the
CCU LP standalone accounts (the Limited Liabilty Parinership Financial Statements)

in preparing the Annual Report and Accounts for the yvear ended 30 April 2022, management reviewed the appropriateness of
this accounting treatment and concluded that the audit trail selting out the appropiiate accounting entnes and counterparties 1o
the intra- group balances at that time was not complete Additionally at this ume CCLLP did not have a formalised contraciual
relationiship with its subsidiary entities for such transactions Therefore. a pnor $ear adjustmenl was recorded to derecognise
the intra-group balance v ith a corresponding correcting adjustment m the reserves of CCLLP. This was the correction of an
error

During the vear ended 30 Apnl 2023, management have undertaken a further exercise to

1) Calculate the individual inra-group balances between CCLLP and each subsidiary canty as at 30 April 2021, 30 April
2022 and 30 Apn} 2023 which anse [fom profit distribunons paid by CCLLP on behalf of a substdian entity, or vice-versa,

2) Put 1n place documentation in the tonm of agreements between CCLLP and relevam subsidiany entities o formalise the
exisung pracuce of allocating and distnibuting LLP profis

As a result. the Annval Repont and Accounts for the year ended 30 April 2023 mcludes a prior peniod restatement 10 the
standatone financral statements of U P, o recogaose the resulting comrect ira-group balances with a cormrespondimg entry
in teserves for the mstone profit allocations m the standalone balance sheet of CCLLP whick anses trom a correction of a
prior pertod emor This restaiement also recogmses foreign exchange translation differences on the revised intra-group
balances and addiuonally includes an adjwstment 1o remove foreign exchange translation differences m the foreign exchange
reserve related 10 balances derccognised m the prior year that remamed (n the reserve in error Thas restatement s set oul in
restatement | below Restatement | also includes a small adjustment 1o distnbutions in the yvear ta 30 April 2022 (£3m)

During the process of cormecung the mra-group balances as noted above, 1L was noted 1hat foreign cxchange gams and losses
acising on other hustoric mira-group balances had been icorrectly classified m the foreign eschange reserve rather than in
profit and loss reserve  This restatement which is the correction of an error 1s set out 1n festatement 2 below  There was also a
correction of an crror 10 e consolidated financial statemens Jor the same reason. which has been noted separately in a 1able
below {sc1 out as resiatement 2a)
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28. Restatement of Consolidated and Limited Liability Partnership Financial Statements (continued)

The restatement outhined above i refation 10 the consolidated financial statements 1s set owt as follows

Consolidated Balance Sheet as at | May 2021

Audited Restatement 2a Restated
£m fm £m
Reserves* 141 - 14
Consolidated Balance Sheet as at 30 Aprif 2022
Audited Restatement 2a Restated
£m £m fm
Reserves? 334 - 334
Consolidated Income Statement for the year ended 30 April 2022
Audited  Restatement 2a Restated
£m £m £m
Operaling costs
Other operating costs {233} (15) (268}
Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income for the yvear ended 30 April 2022
Audited Restatement 2a Restaled
fm Em Em
Items that may be reclassified subsequently to the
Consolidated Income statement:
Net forcign exchange differences recognised within reserves 4 13 9
Cousolidated Cash Flow Statement for the year ended 30 April 2022
Audited Restatement 2a Restated
£m £m £
Cash flows from operating activitics 748 (i3 733
Cash flows from financing acin stics (763) 15 (748,

*The resulting restatement to ‘Reserves’ as at | May 2071 is an increase of £8m i Foreign Fachange Resenves' and
correspondng reduction of £8m in 'Other Reserves’. Similarly, as al 30 Apnil 2022 there 15 an increase of £23m in ‘Faregn

Exchange Resenves' and a corresponding reduction of £23m m 'Other Reserves’
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28. Restatement of Consolidated and Limited Liability Partnership Finaucial Statements (continued)

The restatements 1 and 2 outlined above in relation 10 1he standalone financial statements are set out as follows

Limited Liability Partnership Balance Sheetns at | May 2021

Audited  Restatement I Restatement 2 Restated
fm £m £m £m
ASSETS
Trade and other recervables 458 20 - 478
LIABILITIES
Trade and other payabies 690 98) - 361
REPRESEMNTED BY!:
Qther reserves i387) 101 | B 12
Torcign exchange resenves 26 17 L14) 29
Total Reserves 36k (18 - (243)
Limited Liability Parmership Balance Sheet as at 30 April 2022
Audited Restatement! Restatemnent 2 Restated
£m fm £m £m
ASSETS
Trade and oiher receivables 489 40 - 529
[IABILITIES
1 rade and other payables 7IR {1d6) 5492
REPRESENTED BY:
Other reserves (as av 1 May 2021) (387 101 14 §272)
rarcign exchange resenes (as at 1 May 2621 26 17 tid) 9
Prafit for the year ended 30 April 2022 332 53 if) 377
Other comprehensive income for the year
ended 3G April 2022 73 12 8 93
Profit distributions and related tax for the
vear ended 30 Apnl 2022 {318} 3 (315
Total Reserves (272) 186 - (86)
Limited Liability Partncrship Cash Flow Statemeat lor the year ended 30 April 2022
Audited  Restatement ! Restatement 2 Restated
£m £m £m fm
Cash flows ffom operating activines 343 (5 (8) 322
Cash flows from financing activiics {334 15 8 (331

The corrections (o profit. other comprehensive income and profit distributions and related tax for the year ended 30 Aprit 2022
a3 noted in the earlier table also result in a correction between operating and financing activities in the cash flow statement 1n
pror years the income statement and other comprehensive ncome mesements was not correctly mapped agansi 1he
corresponding mtercompany receivable pay able halance sheet movements which resulted 1n operatmg and financing cash flow

movements being reported in ervor The restatement corrects this
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